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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good

          3  afternoon.  Am I on now?  Gee, I am glad we don't

          4  need a quorum to start my hearing. I am Madeline

          5  Provenzano, and I Chair the Committee on Housing and

          6  Buildings.

          7                 Today we have four items on the

          8  Committee's agenda.  We have Intro. No. 15, it is

          9  regarding the filing of deeds containing restrictive

         10  covenants.  Intro. No. 67, which is also filing of

         11  deeds containing restrictive covenants.

         12                 Proposed Intro. No. 324- A, regarding

         13  Green Building Standards for certain capital

         14  projects, and Proposed Intro. 513- A, it would

         15  regulate and license residential business and

         16  residential contractors.

         17                 Intro. No. 15 and Intro. No. 67 are

         18  somewhat similar bills that are designed to

         19  accomplish the same goal. Intro. No. 15 was

         20  sponsored by Council Member Tony Avella. Intro. No.

         21  67, sponsored by Council Member Katz.

         22                 To summarize respectively, each bill

         23  would require that the Department of Buildings

         24  maintain a registry of old deeds containing

         25  restrictive covenants that are filed with the
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          2  Department.  Any documents that are required to be

          3  filed with the City or any other governmental

          4  entity, must still be independently filed with such

          5  other governmental entity.  The Department of

          6  Buildings would then be required to search this

          7  registry for the purpose of determining whether any

          8  such deeds within this registry contain any

          9  restrictive covenant that would be violated by the

         10  issuance of a permit, or by the completion of the

         11  project for which such permit would be issued.  If

         12  such a violation occurred, DOB would only authorized

         13  to issue a permit when so ordered by a court of law.

         14                 This is the Committee's second

         15  hearing on Proposed Intro. No. 324- A, which is now

         16  titled a local law to amend the New York City

         17  Charter in relation to Green Building Standards for

         18  certain capital projects.  This proposed Intro. Is

         19  sponsored by Speaker Miller, it would employ the use

         20  of Green Building Standards in the construction and

         21  renovation of City- owned and City- funded

         22  buildings.

         23                 As discussed in our previous hearing,

         24  the US Green Building Council has developed a Green

         25  Building Rating System known as LEED, L- E- E- D,
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          2  which stands for Leadership in Energy and

          3  Environmental Design.  Benefits of Green Building

          4  include reduced impact on natural resources,

          5  financial savings, improved occupant comfort and

          6  health, and reduce strain on local infrastructure.

          7                 Compared with conventional

          8  construction, Green Buildings typically use less

          9  water and energy, reduce air pollution, use fewer

         10  resources, and produce less waste, have better

         11  indoors air quality, and are associated with

         12  improvements and work productivity.  The use of

         13  Green Building criteria in New York City will reduce

         14  the City's energy consumption, air pollution and

         15  water usage, and potentially improve occupant health

         16  and worker productivity.

         17                 Proposed Intro. No. 513- A, just in

         18  the nick of time, in relation to the regulation and

         19  licensing of residential business and residential

         20  corridors is sponsored by Council Member James Oddo,

         21  and concerns the construction and development of

         22  one. Two-, and three- family homes.  Proposed Intro.

         23  No. 513- A creates a licensing scheme to require

         24  residential business contractors, and residential

         25  contractors to be licensed with the City of New
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          2  York.  The bill also requires the certification of

          3  the person overseeing the construction of the home

          4  and residence. The licensing and certification

          5  requests contained in this bill would help combat

          6  the current problems of companies and individual

          7  contractors concealing their reputation.  The

          8  Commissioner of Buildings would be in charge of

          9  licensing and certifying requirements pertaining to

         10  residential contractors and residential contractors.

         11                 Anyone that wishes to testify today

         12  must sign in with the Sergeant- At- Arms.  We are

         13  limiting those testifying to three minutes, and I

         14  guess we have a clock some place.

         15                 I am joined today by two colleagues

         16  that are actually members of the Committee and are

         17  sponsors of two of the bills that we have on today.

         18  Intro. No. 15, which is Council Member Tony Avella's

         19  bill, he has another hearing that is waiting for him

         20  to get back to, so we will hear from him first.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chair.  I apologize, but I am chairing Zoning

         23  and Franchises at this time, and I have been

         24  chairing it since 9:30 this morning, and I will be

         25  there for another few hours.  I did want to come by
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          2  and, obviously, talk about Intro. 15 for a few

          3  moments.  As we all well know, members of this

          4  Council and the Administration, since we have both

          5  been elected we had been fighting to preserve the

          6  residential characters of neighborhoods throughout

          7  the entire City.  And we are moving on a number of

          8  fronts, most notably rezoning communities to

          9  accurately reflect the existing housing stock.

         10                 But just doing that is not enough.

         11  There are many other things that we do to preserve

         12  the quality of life.  And Intro. 15 goes a long way

         13  in addressing one of those other issues, and that

         14  is, deed restrictions.  Many neighborhoods were

         15  built at the turn of the century up until, let's say

         16  the forties and the fifties by one developer.  And

         17  that developer put in the deeds of those properties

         18  certain restrictions so that that neighborhood, that

         19  community, would always remain the way it was, a

         20  one- family house, a two- family house, front yard,

         21  side yard. Unfortunately, the City of New York does

         22  not recognize the restrictions, and it has been left

         23  up to individual homeowners, civic groups, and

         24  preservation groups, to enforce those deed

         25  restrictions.  And they have been successful.  But
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          2  it has been a time consuming process in court in the

          3  litigation, and many neighborhood groups have had to

          4  raise as much as $100,000 per case to enforce those

          5  restrictions.  God Bless those groups and those

          6  homeowners for doing that, for working very

          7  tirelessly to preserve their neighborhood, but why

          8  should they have to do that.

          9                 That is part of the responsibility of

         10  the City of New York to preserve the character of

         11  residential communities. My bill, in effect, would

         12  allow homeowners, civic groups to register those

         13  deeds with the Department of Buildings.  Then once

         14  accepted, it would be responsible for the Department

         15  of Buildings to win, let's say a developer applied

         16  for a Building permit, to review that Building

         17  permit not only in terms of the existing zoning, but

         18  also in terms of the deed restriction.  This is

         19  something we absolutely need to do.

         20                 Now I am going to jump ahead because

         21  I do have to go, and I can't listen to the testimony

         22  of the Administration and Department of Buildings,

         23  but I have skimmed your testimony.  I am extremely

         24  disappointed in the Administration.  And the people

         25  that are here to testify later on, will hear, that
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          2  the testimony is basically in opposition to the

          3  legislation.  I hope that the Administration will

          4  revisit this.

          5                 There are several comments in your

          6  testimony, where you have clearly not read the bill.

          7    I mean, if you would have read the bill, you

          8  realize that some of your objections are already

          9  taken care of in the legislation.

         10                 This legislation was very carefully

         11  crafted so as not to put the onerous on the City,

         12  because we could have come up with a bill that said

         13  the City has to go out and look at every deed

         14  restriction, look at every property, we did not do

         15  that.  We came up with a bill working with the

         16  Queens Civic Congress and community groups that have

         17  gone to court on this issue; specifically make it

         18  easy on the City and easy on the homeowners. But it

         19  is something we really need to do, and there is a

         20  comment in the testimony about this is not the core

         21  mission of the Department of Buildings.  Well what

         22  is the core mission of the Department of Buildings?

         23                 And this is also, I am sorry to see

         24  that the Department of City Planning is not here to

         25  testify.  Because this is an additional tool adding
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          2  to the zoning, rest assured that the groups that are

          3  here to testify, and myself, we are not going to go

          4  away, and we are going to stage a letter writing

          5  campaign to the Mayor to get him to come on board

          6  with this. Because the Mayor and I have been working

          7  together with the Department of City Planning as

          8  Chair of Zoning and Franchises to do all of these

          9  rezonings to preserve the residential character of

         10  the neighborhood.  This is just one more tool.

         11                 And then finally, before I go back to

         12  my Committee, I have to make a comment about the

         13  competing legislation, and the sponsor of the bill

         14  is now sitting down next to me.  I am extremely

         15  annoyed that the sponsor of the competing

         16  legislation has apparently given out misinformation

         17  about my bill in term of getting people to support

         18  her legislation.  I think that is very

         19  inappropriate.  If the sponsor of the Intro. 67 had

         20  a question, she should have called me.  I think to

         21  give out misinformation on another colleague's bill

         22  is unfortunate and not professional.

         23                 With that, Madam Chair, I appreciate

         24  your consideration, and I do have to get back to my

         25  own Committee. And I know that there will be many
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          2  people here in the community that will testify, and

          3  this bill is certainly not going to go away.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

          5  Council Member Avella.  We have been joined by

          6  Council Member Melinda Katz, who is the sponsor of

          7  Intro. No. 67.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I don't know

          9  what the information was, but clearly, by osmosis, I

         10  have given out a lot of information.  I think that

         11  what is important here is that the substance of both

         12  pieces of legislation are very important to our

         13  communities.  I don't think that any interim of

         14  politics involved here today, should get in the way

         15  of making sure that the substance is dealt with,

         16  that the restrictive covenants that protect our

         17  communities actually become law.  And I think that

         18  that is truly what the focus on should be here

         19  today.

         20                 I am so happy to see so many civics

         21  out there. And I have to tell you; it is interesting

         22  what my colleague said because I hardly had any

         23  conversations on this legislation.  I have had

         24  conversations about my legislation, and I have asked

         25  folks to support it, and I think it is important.
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          2  But as far as Council Member Avella's legislation

          3  goes, I honestly believe that no matter what we need

          4  to do to make sure that our communities are

          5  protected is clearly what is in store for this

          6  Council.

          7                 I would agree with him on several

          8  issues.  Number one is that we spend a lot of time

          9  down zoning our communities that need to be down

         10  zoned in order to protect our areas. Especially

         11  Queens where I live is made up of separate and

         12  distinct neighborhoods.  And the reason people like

         13  staying is because our neighborhoods are just so

         14  wonderful and beautiful, and try to keep the

         15  pristine of it, as we move forward with our

         16  rezonings, while up zoning areas that are

         17  appropriate.

         18                 So I think that this hearing, if I

         19  may be so bold as to suggest, should be about

         20  substance.  And what I would love to hear from the

         21  communities is why restrictive covenants are a

         22  problem, how it has been an issue like in my

         23  neighborhood where private citizens have had to

         24  spend hundreds of thousands of dollars to protect

         25  their communities, because restrictive covenants
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          2  were not found when developers go to the Department

          3  of Buildings.  And we should all work towards making

          4  sure that in whatever capacity that we pass this

          5  legislation, that are communities are protected.

          6  That is what we are here to do, that is what this

          7  Council should be about.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         10  Council member.  Council Member James Oddo, who is

         11  the sponsor of Intro. 513- A, you want to make some

         12  comments.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Oh sure, why

         14  not.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  That is what

         16  I was afraid of.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Let's lighten

         18  things up, shall we, and go to me.  Madam Chair,

         19  let's play a little game of true and false, if we

         20  may.

         21                 True or false, the City of New York

         22  licenses Bingo Game operators?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Does the

         24  City license?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  True.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  True, okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  True or false,

          4   - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Am I suppose

          6  to be the one playing this game with you?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Please.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  True or false,

         10  the City of New York licenses auctioneers?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yeah.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  True.  True or

         13  false, the City of New York licenses locksmiths?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  True or false -

         16   -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You are not

         18  thinking of changing your profession?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  There are some

         20  days I often do.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, you do,

         22  okay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  True or false,

         24  the City of New York licenses and regulates scale

         25  dealers?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  True or false,

          4  the City of New York licenses motion picture

          5  operators?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  True or false,

          8  the City of New York does not license residential

          9  own builders?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  They do not

         11  license.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  They do not.

         13  And when you think about the biggest investment New

         14  Yorkers make in their lifetimes, the biggest

         15  investment clearly is their homes.  And it is kind

         16  of mind- boggling to me that in the year 2005 we, as

         17  a Metropolis do not regulate residential own

         18  builders.

         19                 If you listen to the City Council

         20  talk about local issues, and I have said this

         21  before, you go from as north as the Bronx and Oli

         22  Koppell, out east, as far out east as James Sanders

         23  in the Rockaways, you talk to the Council members

         24  that represent Manhattan, you talk to the Council

         25  members that represent Staten Island, the most
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          2  common and recurring theme on a local level is over

          3  development.  And you have people engaged in

          4  completely transforming communities for the worse,

          5  knocking down homes, building new homes, and gutting

          6  communities in the process. There is lots of money

          7  to be made, so every Tom, Dick, and Harry, every

          8  Shoemaker, every Baker, every Candle maker, is

          9  trying to get in on that money.  So you have

         10  reputable builders and you have a whole lot of other

         11  people making money, and turning the dream of

         12  homeownership into a nightmare.

         13                 And we don't regulate the industry.

         14  If you look across the river at the State of New

         15  Jersey who studied this issue, the New Jersey State

         16  Commission on Investigation found that the industry

         17  in New Jersey is replete with fraud, with shoddy

         18  workmanship.  Their study is comprehensive, and it

         19  would be naive of us to think that it ends with the

         20  Hudson River and it doesn't happen in New York City.

         21    It does, Council members know that fact.

         22                 So we have a piece of legislation.

         23  Is it a good bill?  I think it is a pretty good

         24  bill.  Is it a perfect bill? No, it is not.  But it

         25  is, at least, a start, and let me just echo the
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          2  comments of Council Member Avella that I too, kind

          3  of read ahead a little bit, and read the Department

          4  of Buildings testimony.  And I have to, I absolutely

          5  have to laugh that the Department has problems with

          6  this bill.

          7                 Why is it that this responsibility

          8  has fallen on a local elected official?  Why is it

          9  that the Department of Buildings isn't pushing its

         10  own piece of legislation?  Why is it that the

         11  Department of Buildings isn't engaging in a process,

         12  whether it is licensing or registration?

         13                 I will close with this, Madam Chair,

         14  and you have heard me say it on the floor of the

         15  Council.  Over two years ago, as part of the Staten

         16  Island Growth Management Task Force, one of the main

         17  charges given to the Department of Buildings was to

         18  come up with a licensing or registration, a model.

         19  And they worked on it for a while, and then

         20  suddenly, there was an epiphany, and they said that,

         21  at one of the last meetings that they now support

         22  Council Member Oddo's bill.  Well that bill that

         23  Council Member Oddo introduced was a piece of crap,

         24  and it was introduced solely to start a

         25  conversation.  It was not this bill, it was a bill
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          2  that a previous Council member had put in, it was

          3  over broad, it was a bad bill.  But I put it in to

          4  start a conversation.

          5                 Suddenly, at the 11th hour the

          6  Building's Department said they supported that bill,

          7  and essentially shed themselves of the

          8  responsibility that was given to them.  So you will

          9  hear from them, and you will hear their criticisms

         10  about the bill.  I find it laughable because they

         11  should be aggressively pursuing some sort of system.

         12    It shouldn't be us; they should be the ones coming

         13  up with a piece of legislation or a system that

         14  protects New Yorkers.  Again, the biggest investment

         15  in your life, people who buy homes, and within a

         16  year the foundations are cracked, within a year they

         17  had two bedrooms, two baths, and an indoors swimming

         18  pool that they didn't plan on.  By the way, that is

         19  their basement.  And this is an agency that punted,

         20  that punted that responsibility.  It falls upon us,

         21  and the best they can offer us in their three pages

         22  of testimony is why the bill is lacking.  I think

         23  that is the insult on top of the injury, but we will

         24  get into that in more detail after the testimony.

         25                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, we are

          3  going to hear testimony from Steve Kramer, who is

          4  Chief of Staff for the Department of Buildings.  And

          5  I am going to suggest that you give testimony on all

          6  three bills, upfront, and then folks can ask

          7  questions on all three.  And we will save Green for

          8  later.

          9                 MR. KRAMER:  Is this on?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, I'm

         11  sorry, we also have Phyllis Arnold.

         12                 MR. KRAMER:  Yes, I am here today.

         13  Good afternoon, Chairwoman Provenzano, and members

         14  of the Housing and Buildings Committee.  My name is

         15  Stephen Kramer, and I am Chief of Staff of the New

         16  York City Department of Buildings, and I am here

         17  with Phyllis Arnold, who is General Counsel of the

         18  New York City Department of Buildings.

         19                 We are here today to speak on two

         20  similar bills, Intros. 15 and 67, which relate to

         21  the filing and enforcement of private, restrictive

         22  covenants.  And in addition, I am going to present

         23  the Department's position on Intro. 513- A,

         24  concerning the regulation on licensing residential

         25  contractors, in particular, it is residential
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          2  contractors for one-, two-, and three- family homes.

          3                 Turning first to Intros. 15 and 67

          4  relating to restrictive covenants.  Restrictive

          5  covenants are typically private agreements entered

          6  into by property owners that impose restrictions on

          7  the use or development of real property that may

          8  differ from or exceed restrictions imposed by local

          9  building codes or local zoning.  For example,

         10  covenants may exclude classes of people from

         11  occupancy, they may restrict uses to single family

         12  dwellings where multiple dwellings would otherwise

         13  be allowed under zoning, or impose all variety of

         14  aesthetic constraints on the use of property.  Thus,

         15  we have neighborhoods such as Forest Hills Gardens,

         16  which have a very beautiful and standard aesthetic,

         17  and there are many others in the City like it.

         18                 Traditionally, these covenants run

         19  with the land. The covenants are matters of private

         20  contract and are traditionally enforced by the

         21  homeowners or property owners directly against each

         22  other, in civil judicial actions when one of the

         23  parties does not agree to comply voluntarily.  A

         24  violation of this type of private contract is

         25  ordinarily a civil matter, that is, it does not
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          2  involve government exercising its police power.  You

          3  don't go to your local police officer to arrest

          4  someone for violating it, but rather you go to court

          5  on a traditional civil action.

          6                 Indeed, there is a significant body

          7  of case law that is developed dated back centuries

          8  construing restrictive covenants, which are very

          9  often construed as being restrictions on the alien

         10  ability of land.  Because their enforcement

         11  typically retards development, and is a restriction

         12  on alien ability, the courts presumptively disfavor

         13  them absent the satisfaction of certain defined

         14  criteria.

         15                 Currently, the Department neither

         16  enforces nor recognizes private covenants, as you

         17  noted earlier, and it observes the judicial rule

         18  that agencies lack authority to enforced private

         19  covenants by basing determinations on them. Rather

         20  under the City's Charter and the City's

         21  Administrative Code, the Department's issuance of

         22  building permits is mandated once an applicant

         23  satisfies zoning and code regulations. Regardless of

         24  the fact that the construction authorized by the

         25  permit may well violate a private restrictive
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          2  covenant. Homeowners who believe that the permitted

          3  development violates the term of a restrictive

          4  covenant, and cannot negotiate a settlement of its

          5  claim must sue the project developer in court, often

          6  after the permit is issued.  And as you mentioned,

          7  often a considerable expense.

          8                 The bills before you would transfer

          9  the duty of enforcement from private parties to the

         10  government.  The bills would imposed the duty on the

         11  Department of Buildings to recognize covenants and

         12  to withhold building permits pending judicial

         13  resolution of the enforceability of the

         14  restrictions, if it appears to the Department that

         15  proposed development would violate the covenant.

         16  The Department would be required to maintain and

         17  check a registry of such covenants in order to make

         18  the required determination.

         19                 While we understand the purposes of

         20  the bills, they present several major problems.

         21  First, they put the Department of Buildings in the

         22  position of having to make a judge- like

         23  determination as to whether a particular development

         24  violates the terms of the covenant.  While the bills

         25  recognize that that determination is ultimately for
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          2  the courts, it would be the Department, essentially

          3  lawyers in the Department, I presume, who would be

          4  required to make a threshold finding of violation in

          5  order to trigger the authority to withhold the

          6  permit.  That determination is likely to be

          7  contested and to generate an independent dispute

          8  over its propriety, presumably in an Article 78

          9  proceeding, and would require defense by the City's

         10  attorneys and would mean two tracks of litigation

         11  over a project even before it is permitted.   The

         12  interpretation and enforcement of private

         13  restrictive covenants is a distraction from the

         14  Department's core mission, which is to promote

         15  safety and to enforce the Building Code and the

         16  Zoning Resolution, not private contracts.

         17                 Second, some private covenants may

         18  violate the law or public policy of the City or

         19  State.  Restrictions based on race or religion are

         20  among the classics and the Supreme Court has struck

         21  down their enforcement by the courts, and

         22  presumably, of course, by City agencies in the

         23  landmark case of Shelley v. Kramer in 1948.  In that

         24  case restrictions on selling property to Blacks and

         25  Jews was struck down, it was purely a matter of
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          2  private contract, but the courts held that they were

          3  not enforceable by the State.  Other restrictions

          4  may be contrary to public policy, such as

          5  restrictions prohibiting group homes, restrictions

          6  prohibiting children from living at a particular

          7  development, or restrictions prohibiting a siting of

          8  social service facilities.  Similarly, federal law

          9  may preempt local action in some areas, such as the

         10  siting of Telecommunications equipment.  The bills

         11  before you put the Department in the potentially

         12  liability- generating position of enforcing

         13  instrument for restrictions regardless of content.

         14                 Finally, by turning restrictive

         15  covenants into a presumptively proper basis for

         16  withholding a building permit, the bills would shift

         17  the cost of enforcing private contracts from the

         18  parties who freely entered into them on to the

         19  public, even though these private covenants do not,

         20  as I mentioned before, necessarily represent public

         21  policy.  Currently, homeowners seeking to enforce

         22  the terms must pay the cost in both time and money

         23  of litigating the issue and seeking interim

         24  injunctive relief.  Since private parties agreed to

         25  these restrictions, it is our belief that they
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          2  should pay the cost of their enforcement, not of

          3  other developers or City government.  And if the

          4  private parties are concerned about the burden of

          5  attorney's fees in these matters, they can provide

          6  in the covenants that the losing party shall pay for

          7  the cost of enforcement.  But the solution proposed

          8  by these bills, essentially amending these contracts

          9  to provide an additional remedy by making them

         10  enforceable by the Buildings department, seems to us

         11  to be a highly problematic solution.

         12                 The Department, of course, shares the

         13  Committee's concerns for those homeowners who may or

         14  may not be completely aware of the complexity or

         15  significance of a deed restriction that contains a

         16  restrictive covenant.  However, we feel that at this

         17  time those differences between two private parties

         18  over the nuances of their covenants should be

         19  resolved in civil courts where civil disputes have

         20  traditionally been resolved.

         21                 I will now address, or turning to

         22  your Intro. 513 A, concerning regulation and

         23  licensing of residential contractors.

         24                 Let me begin by emphasizing the

         25  Department of Buildings supports licensing general
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          2  contractors, and in particular supports licensing of

          3  the builders of homes in New York City, and we have

          4  discussed that with the staff and members of this

          5  Committee on numerous occasions.  Careless,

          6  incompetent, or unscrupulous contractors, whether it

          7  be contractors who build homes, or contractors who

          8  erect scaffolds, pose a danger to construction

          9  workers, and they pose a danger to the general

         10  public.  Houses built in violation of the many

         11  important provisions of the Code, can also present

         12  hidden dangers and contain latent defects that may

         13  not be apparent on an inspection by prospective

         14  homebuyers or by their engineers, and of course,

         15  homeowners should hire an engineer to look at a home

         16  before they buy it.  Improper or inadequate

         17  construction can jeopardize the financial security

         18  of homeowners, who, virtually all of us invest our

         19  life savings in our homes, and it is our biggest

         20  asset.

         21                 Licensing or registration can provide

         22  a mechanism to assure that contractors who build in

         23  violation of plans, or who put workers at risk

         24  through poor supervision or dangerous practices can

         25  be prevented from doing business in the City.
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          2  Licensing can also give perspective homebuyers

          3  assurance that they are dealing with reputable

          4  businesses.

          5                 With that said, it is our view that

          6  the particular bill that we have in front of us

          7  today, Intro. 513- A, does not reflect a workable

          8  solution to the problem of incompetent or

          9  unscrupulous contractors, and we believe that some

         10  significant changes must be made to provide a

         11  workable solution.  The bill does, however, contain,

         12  we think, some very good provisions, I am just going

         13  to highlight in the few minutes remaining, some of

         14  the problems that we have with this bill.

         15                 First, under the bill as it is now

         16  drafted, unlike other provisions of the Code, Intro.

         17  513- A contains no substantive requirements relating

         18  to the experience or competency of the license

         19  holder.  Compare this or really contrast this with

         20  all of the other licensees in the Building Code,

         21  plumbers, fire suppression contractors, and

         22  electricians, to name a few of the building trades,

         23  all of whom must have defining credentials in order

         24  to become licensed.  It seems to us to be somewhat

         25  incongruous to provide that a licensee be subjected
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          2  to an examination as to his or her fitness, and

          3  qualifications under the Building Code without

          4  providing expressly what topics that examination

          5  will cover.

          6                 Secondly, requiring the licensing of

          7  all of the principals, all of the officers, and all

          8  persons participating in the management of the

          9  construction firm appeals to us as overly broad.

         10  There are several thousand- construction firms in

         11  New York City, each of which has numerous officers,

         12  numerous principals and managers.  Some of these

         13  individuals may already be licensed trade persons or

         14  professionals in their respective disciplines.

         15  Others may be relatives or simply passive investors.

         16    Conducting thousands of background checks on all

         17  of these individuals would be an enormous

         18  undertaking, it would severely interfere of the

         19  operations of the Department, and particularly would

         20  adversely effect the background checks that the

         21  Department currently performs on the existing

         22  licensees, which include plumbers, electricians,

         23  fire suppression piping contractors, high- pressure

         24  boiler operating engineers, site safety managers,

         25  welders, rigors, and the like.  In addition, it
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          2  would be a significant deterrent to any large

          3  corporation that wishes to enter into New York

          4  City's housing market, if every principal, every

          5  manager, and officers of the firm must submit to a

          6  background check and obtain a license in order to do

          7  business here.

          8                 Third, based on the Department's

          9  years of experience in the licensing of other

         10  trades, we have been able to assign liability

         11  without amending the existing regulatory scheme to

         12  require that each principal, officer or manager of

         13  the firm be licensed.  There is no evidence to

         14  suggest that this overly broad requirement will

         15  enhance enforcement, encourage safer construction

         16  practices, or provide consumers with a remedy for

         17  shoddy construction.

         18                 We believe that Intro. 513, which is

         19  another bill that has been introduced this session,

         20  provides a far more workable solution than 513- A,

         21  and would provide consumers with a remedy.  While

         22  Intro. 513 is not a comprehensive licensing scheme,

         23  nor is it a comprehensive, consumer protection bill,

         24  it does mandate that every construction firm for

         25  one-, two-, three family homes employing individuals
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          2  certified by the Department who would be responsible

          3  for construction safety, on- site Code compliance,

          4  and construction in accordance with plans.  We

          5  believe that this model presents a more workable

          6  draft for the problems that we all know exist.

          7  However, as currently drafted, 513- A appears unduly

          8  complex.  It will not provide workers, the public,

          9  or homeowners with any assurance regarding the

         10  competency of general contractors.  It would be

         11  cumbersome to administer, and likely to discourage

         12  firms from doing business in the City.

         13                 The Department rather would like to

         14  endorse a bill that makes the concept of general

         15  contractor registration plausible, and in addition,

         16  would be, is very eager to engage in discussions

         17  regarding other forms of consumer protection for the

         18  home buying public.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  address the Committee.  And Phyllis Arnold and I

         21  will be happy to answer any questions you may have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         23  We have a question from Council Member Katz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Yes, I don't

         25  know how you want to proceed, Madam Chair.  Do you
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          2  want to do the two deed bills first, and then pass.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  That is what

          4  we are doing, go right ahead.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you very

          6  much for your returning today.  I just have, I

          7  guess, very quick questions. There is clearly a

          8  problem in my community with restrictive covenants.

          9  I mean they are obviously in deeds; they are a large

         10  part of why people buy houses in 1980.  So I guess

         11  the first question that I would have is, how do you,

         12  if these two bills don't, I guess, proceed in a way

         13  that the Department of Buildings would like to see

         14  it proceed in order to protect the communities, is

         15  there any suggestion, perhaps, from your Department

         16  on what could be done in order to protect the

         17  communities?

         18                 MR. KRAMER:  You know I think that

         19  the real issue here is who bears the cost of

         20  enforcing the restrictive covenants.  I mean on the

         21  whole, prior to coming to the Department I gain

         22  familiarity with some disputes over restrictive

         23  covenants and easements, and abandoned easements,

         24  and what have you, and what I learned then is that

         25  very often deed restrictions are old, they are
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          2  complex, and there is not a great deal of interest

          3  in enforcement, but sometimes, indeed, they are used

          4  by one party really to hold up another party for

          5  financial purposes and economic purposes, not for

          6  the true goal of seeing the development go forward

          7  in a particular way.

          8                 I think that the civil enforcement

          9  scheme is one way to go.  One way of having, for

         10  example, co- ops and condominiums as require the

         11  approval of the co- op or condominium before you can

         12  apply to the Buildings Department, and I think that

         13  might be a better way to go here.  Than to require

         14  the Buildings Department to essentially, you know,

         15  have lawyers look at the restrictive covenants and

         16  saying, hmmm, we think that this proposed

         17  construction in not in compliance.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  But really,

         19  with all due respect to the Department, we make

         20  those judgments every day.  I mean that is what we

         21  do, every single time a developer makes an

         22  application to the Department of Buildings, or to

         23  any of the Departments, there are lawyers, and there

         24  are planners, and there are folks that whose job it

         25  is to say whether something is in compliance or not.
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          2    And I guess what I would just like to try to

          3  figure out why this is different than all those

          4  other things that we spend a lot of money on making

          5  sure the developers are in compliance.

          6                 MR. KRAMER:  Well what we looked for

          7  compliance on is with the Building Code, which has

          8  been passed by the Council, and the Zoning

          9  Resolution, which has been passed by the City

         10  Planning Commission and approved by Council.  So

         11  these are public documents with language that has

         12  been, you know, which has been approved by a public

         13  body, as opposed to, and there is a public policy

         14  that the language of the Building Code and the

         15  provisions of the Zoning Resolution embody.  Private

         16  covenants may not, first of all, the language can be

         17  obscure, and there is not necessarily a public

         18  interest.

         19                 I know that obviously the person

         20  whose, who believes that his property value, or the

         21  beauty of his neighborhood is being adversely or

         22  character of his neighborhood is being adversely

         23  effected by construction, believes that there is a

         24  public interest involved in the enforcement of the

         25  covenant. But that doesn't mean that necessarily
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          2  that every member of this Committee or the Council,

          3  or more importantly that a majority of members of

          4  the Committee and Council agree that that is a

          5  matter of public concern.

          6                 I mean you can think of examples, one

          7  that I was involved in involved the landscaping of

          8  the backyards of a large group of buildings.  And,

          9  you know, to come and ask the Department of

         10  Buildings whether or not a 1921 agreement is still

         11  enforceable, one, that in that case, had not been

         12  enforced for 165 or 20 years, and the Buildings

         13  Department should withhold the permit, would be

         14  rather extraordinary.  I mean if the people were

         15  really interested in enforcing it, they can go to

         16  court.  But to ask, it may be against public policy.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So the answer

         18  truly is who bears the burden, I mean that truly is

         19  what the answer is.  And so for those of us that

         20  want the City to bear the burden as opposed to the

         21  communities, then the answer is that we just

         22  disagree on whom that should be.

         23                 I mean one of the issues between

         24  Intro. 15 and my bill is one of the things I wanted

         25  answered hopefully by some of the civics that are
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          2  going to be testifying, is one of the issues in

          3  Intro. 15 was that the Council has restricted being

          4  able to sue the City and collecting damages for

          5  restrictive covenant.  I don't believe that we

          6  should ever restrict the community from being able

          7  to enforced agreements within the community.

          8                 And I guess when you turn bearing the

          9  burden, it is not that the Department really can't

         10  do it, it is just that the burden, in your views, in

         11  the Commissioner's view I guess, would just be too

         12  high on the City.

         13                 MR. KRAMER:  I think there are

         14  several different issues.  One is, is it fair to

         15  have, you got one community which has some complex

         16  agreements, and then you have another community

         17  which doesn't.  The question is whether it is fair

         18  in terms of bearing the burden of imposing the cost

         19  of enforcing those restrictions, part of those costs

         20  on the community, which does not have them.  So yes,

         21  the issue is, is that fair, is one question.

         22                 A second question is whether or not

         23  those covenants reflect public policy and should be

         24  something, which is publicly enforced.  And I will

         25  give you an example, which is trivial, but let's say
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          2  you have a prohibition on barbecuing in backyards,

          3  which actually exist in some communities.  And the

          4  question is should you be able, if you have a

          5  private agreement, a written contract with your

          6  neighbors that there should be no barbecuing, or no

          7  picnics, or what have you, should you be able to go

          8  to your local police officer and say, go stop that

          9  party and shut it down, even though it is not

         10  against the law to do that.  Or whether or not your

         11  remedy is in court, which is normally.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Right.  And we

         13  can respectively agree to disagree, and I know I am

         14  taking up too much time.  But I just think that the

         15  only big difference would be that this is

         16  development, this is not barbecuing in the backyard,

         17  and this is not how we do our grass.  This is not,

         18  you know, whether or not you can put red flowers in

         19  front of the house instead of blue flowers.  This is

         20  permanent development that is happening in our

         21  communities, and we can rezone as fast as we

         22  possibly can, but we are not going to rezone fast

         23  enough. I mean it has been perfect in our area in

         24  Forest Hills where we had things go up faster than

         25  we could rezone.
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          2                 So I guess I have great respect for

          3  both of you, and I guess that we can agree to just

          4  disagree on that.  I would just point out that there

          5  is a difference between the use of your home once it

          6  is developed, than the ability or not ability to

          7  develop it.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         10  We have been joined by Council Member Diana Reyna.

         11                 Council Member Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.  Mr. Kramer, in the beginning of the

         14  testimony with respect to 513- A, you said that the

         15  Buildings Department supports licensing or

         16  registration of general contractors of homes.  What

         17  does that mean exactly, what does the DOB supports

         18  it?

         19                 MR. KRAMER:  What it means is, I

         20  think I mentioned that there is Intro. 513, which

         21  was introduced, I believe, this year.  That that is

         22  a bill that I would be prepared to testify in favor

         23  of.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  But when you

         25  say you support, does that mean that the

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Administration supports a piece of legislation in

          3  front of it, does that mean that the Buildings

          4  Department believes that this is a serious issue,

          5  does that mean that the Buildings Department is

          6  aggressively looking for solutions to the problem,

          7  what does support mean simply if there is a piece of

          8  legislation put in front, you will give it a thumbs

          9  up or a thumbs down?

         10                 MR. KRAMER:  The Department has over

         11  the last two years in numerous conversations with

         12  you and your colleagues said that we think that

         13  general contractor licensing is a good idea. And

         14  indeed, last year or the year before we drafted and

         15  submitted and discussed with members of the Council

         16  a bill regarding licensing of scaffold erectors, as

         17  well.

         18                 We think, and my personal view, and

         19  it is the view of the Department, and I believe many

         20  members of the Administration, that the City would

         21  be a lot better off, and that our citizens would be

         22  a lot better off, if general contractors, and in

         23  particular general contractors of one-, two-, and

         24  three family homes were licensed.

         25                 There are two different I think
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          2  principle purposes behind the licensing regulation

          3  that we discussed.  One is that to see that the

          4  provisions of the Building Code and the provisions

          5  of the Zoning Resolution are complied with.  That

          6  people build in compliance with their plans, they

          7  build in compliance with the Building Code, and for

          8  example, there are many things that are hidden

          9  behind walls that may not be caught in an

         10  inspection, for example, fire stopping.  It is a

         11  very important provision, and it may not be picked

         12  up by an inspector. And that when we find a

         13  contractor who repeatedly violates provisions of the

         14  Code, we would like to be able to his contract and

         15  have him, to pull his license and to preclude him

         16  from building additional homes in the City.

         17                 There is a second issue, which is one

         18  of consumer protection.  Which is some homes may

         19  well be built in compliance with Code, in which we

         20  couldn't issue a Building Code violation for, but

         21  which don't meet standards, professional standards.

         22  You can have flooding, you could have walls

         23  cracking, you could have stairs crumpling, what have

         24  you, which may result in a violation from the

         25  Buildings Department or may not, but which would be
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          2  difficult to go after the contractor for not having

          3  built in compliance with Code.

          4                 And there are two ways, I think, of

          5  protecting; I see protection of consumers in that

          6  situation.  One is essentially a matter of private

          7  contractors just for the consumer and the consumer's

          8  attorney to insist on a warranty from the builder.

          9  It adds to the cost of the building, but it is a

         10  proven mechanism, and many reputable builders in

         11  Staten Island provide them.  It requires,

         12  essentially, that the contractor have a good enough

         13  reputation so that he can go to an insurance company

         14  who will provide the warranty and will step into the

         15  contractors place, if he fails to fix a condition.

         16                 A second mechanism, which is used in

         17  several states, is essentially for contractors to

         18  pay a fee, or a tax, an equivalent of a tax on the

         19  value of their construction, and that goes into a

         20  fund for homeowners who are grieved.  And usually in

         21  order to get money out of that fund, you have to go

         22  through an arbitration process.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  All right, so

         24  before we get into other jurisdictions, because I

         25  want to ask specifically that, let me get back to
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          2  the line of questioning I want.

          3                 So is it fair to say that the

          4  Buildings Department and the Administration see this

          5  issue, the issue of shoddy construction, the issue

          6  of - -  Let's take it back, to see this issue of

          7  licensing or registration as an important issue?  Do

          8  you see it as a serious problem?

          9                 MR. KRAMER:  We think that it is

         10  something that is very much worth pursuing, yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Are you

         12  familiar with the State of New Jersey's Commission

         13  on Investigation of the industry in New Jersey; are

         14  you familiar with that report at all?

         15                 MR. KRAMER:  I have read newspaper

         16  summaries of the report, and I am aware of some of

         17  the provisions.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  They find

         19  widespread latent construction deficiencies,

         20  structural, mechanical flaws, some of the things

         21  that you alluded to earlier, cracked and crumpling

         22  foundations, improper foundation anchorage, faulty

         23  plumbing, flawed electrical systems, basement crawls

         24  and inhabitable areas prone to flooding, moisture

         25  intrusion, site engineering deficiency, and the list
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          2  goes on and on.  Is it safe to assume, without

          3  casting dispersions across the entire industry, the

          4  way I don't like it when they cast dispersions

          5  across our industry, is it safe to assume that there

          6  is a group, a minority, a small group of people

          7  engaging across the river here in New York that

          8  result in the same issues and the same concerns?

          9                 MR. KRAMER:  I cannot personally

         10  testify on that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  The Buildings

         12  Department doesn't know whether there or not there

         13  is a problem with faulty plumbing, flawed electrical

         14  systems, basements, crawls, et cetera?

         15                 MR. KRAMER:  Well of course we know

         16  that there are numerous reports of that.  And

         17  indeed, we have certainly come across our own

         18  instances of builders building in violation of Code,

         19  and that is why we support general contracting

         20  licenses.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  But you didn't

         22  support it strong enough to act on it when it was

         23  your responsibility two years ago.  Can we get on

         24  the record an explanation as to why more than two

         25  years ago when we talked about it in the Growth

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Management Task Force, your folks were going to look

          3  at the State of New Jersey?  We had heated

          4  conversations as to whether or not the licensing or

          5  the registration should actually happen by the

          6  Department of Consumer Affairs or your agency, why

          7  after nine, ten, eleven, twelve months of us

          8  believing that you guys were investigating this and

          9  pursuing an answer, you came up with sort of, well,

         10  we like the legislation before the Council, which is

         11  not 513- A or 513, for that matter, what happened?

         12                 MR. KRAMER:  I believe that we

         13  drafted a bill and submitted it to your staff.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  That is not the

         15  case, that is not the case.

         16                 You guys are charged with the

         17  responsibility, we had, we broke up, City Planning

         18  had certain responsibilities, the Department of

         19  Buildings, one of the main charges you guys had was

         20  to come up with some sort of system.  Because we as

         21  a Borough recognized that this was a problem.  Nine

         22  months later, or ten months later of you guys

         23  investigating what the State of New Jersey was

         24  doing, you announced, without maybe, without giving

         25  us a day's notice, a day's heads up, that you now
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          2  suddenly were abandoning any efforts to date, and

          3  was supporting a piece of legislation.  Again, not

          4  513, not 513- A, it was a bill that was introduced

          5  in the previous Council.  It was over broad, it

          6  talked about all contractors.  I introduced it

          7  solely to instigate a conversation about it.  And

          8  you guys punted.

          9                 So, you know, either you really

         10  believe this is an issue, and you want to get

         11  something done, or you don't.  And to date, I see

         12  that you don't.

         13                 And for the record, Madam Chair,

         14  Intro. 513 that Mr. Kramer alluded to is a bill

         15  that, yes, we introduced.  And the problem with that

         16  bill, and here is my next question, is that bill

         17  doesn't address this scenario.  Joe Smith is a

         18  principal in the X company, and Joe Smith is not a

         19  good builder.  And Joe Smith puts out a shoddy

         20  product, and there is problems with X company's

         21  performance.  X company goes away, and now Joe Smith

         22  is doing business under Y company.  We believe that

         23  513 our own bill, not another Council member's bill,

         24  my own bill doesn't address that problem, so we took

         25  it to the next step.
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          2                 How do we address the problem of a

          3  principal kind of moving around?  And we have seen

          4  that happen, we see it happen with folks who get two

          5  strikes and the third strike they are going to be

          6  out on selling tobacco.  We see that with stores and

          7  deli's selling alcohol.  We want to try to avoid

          8  that, that is why we took 513, which was a pretty

          9  good bill, and we thought we improved it.  That is

         10  the goal here.

         11                 Why don't you support that?

         12                 MR. KRAMER:  Well I think that, well,

         13  several things.  First, I agree that we actually

         14  told you that that was a problem in 513, but that

         15  nevertheless we believe that, we do license, for

         16  example, plumbers, electricians, and what have you.

         17  And we require that work be done under the direct

         18  supervision of a licensed plumber, but we do not

         19  require that every owner and every manager in the

         20  firm have a license from us.  Indeed, that is a very

         21  extraordinary provision, in which I have not seen in

         22  other bills.  You know the only other thing I can

         23  think of quite comparable of that is in a law firm,

         24  where it is true, every member of a law firm, every

         25  member of a law firm and every associate in a law
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          2  firm has to be licensed by the State of New York.

          3  But in general that is not the regulatory model,

          4  which is used in licensing schemes.

          5                 I say that I think that the two-

          6  prong approach, which is one, to have a person on

          7  the job site who is licensed by the City of New

          8  York, and who is responsible legally, and his firm

          9  will be responsible for compliance with Code, for

         10  compliance with Zoning is the first step.

         11                 The second step is the question of

         12  really a consumer protection mechanism, and for that

         13  we may need State legislation to impose the

         14  requirement of either a warranty, or perhaps, I

         15  think if you provide a warranty, personally, I think

         16  if you provide a warranty, you may be able to opt-

         17  out of these provisions.  Because I think a warranty

         18  really does protect the consumer.  And then if you

         19  don't provide a warranty, that you pay into a fund,

         20  and I believe this is New Jersey's model, it is also

         21  in the Home Improvement Contractor's model, you pay

         22  into a fund, and if you are able to establish

         23  through arbitration where you don't need a lawyer,

         24  to go in that you have a problem.  It may be that

         25  the arbitration is handled by the local
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          2  architectural community, that you get an award out

          3  of that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Well how

          5  aggressively are you pursuing that on the State?  Is

          6  the Administration pursuing?

          7                 Here is my frustration.  I will sit

          8  down with the Administration and your Department, I

          9  will sit down with the industry, I want to craft a

         10  bill that is good.

         11                 My problem is, it seems like I have a

         12  reluctant dance partner.  You were dancing so low,

         13  and you weren't dancing, and now I am trying to get

         14  you to the dance floor, and it seems you don't want

         15  to dance.

         16                 I would expect this, frankly, from

         17  the industry. I wouldn't expect it from you folks,

         18  if you are acknowledging that it is a problem.  So,

         19  either you don't believe it is a problem, and this

         20  is just an annoyance to you, or you truly believe it

         21  is a problem and you are doing everything that you

         22  can do.  I don't see, like you should be as

         23  passionate about this as I am.

         24                 MR. KRAMER:  Well, I think we are

         25  willing to meet with you, and work on this bill,
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          2  work on another bill with you, and have it

          3  introduced in the Council.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Wait, wait, I

          5  appreciate that, but we are how many years down the

          6  road now.  This Council does its business until the

          7  end of June.  We are not in session, theoretically,

          8  in July and August.  You have a Primary Mayor's

          9  race, and then we are looking at the next Council.

         10  And the next Council will have new leadership and

         11  new Chair people that will have different

         12  priorities.  And, you know, in the process we have

         13  lost three years, and countless instances, and

         14  countless constituents of ours who, you know, their

         15  dream of homeownership has become a nightmare.  And

         16  I just, I wish there was a, I wish I saw a much more

         17  aggressive approach.  Because now we are looking at,

         18  at the earliest, you know, you are looking at the

         19  middle of 2006.  And again, the insult on top of the

         20  injury here is that you guys agreed to take on this

         21  responsibility two years ago, and nothing came out

         22  of that.

         23                 And that is why, I mean I don't, as

         24  hard as this might be for you to believe, I don't

         25  get my rocks off by banging the Building Department.
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          2    I get frustrated because when you guys go home, I

          3  go home, and I go to the local grocery store and I

          4  am buying milk and bread, and I hear the war

          5  stories, and they are right.  And they are real

          6  issues that need real answers, and if I could do it

          7  independently, I wouldn't be bothering you folks.

          8  But I need you guys, Donald to work with me; I like

          9  to sent you guys take the lead.

         10                 If the Administration said that

         11  licensing or registration of one-, two-, and three-

         12  family homeowners was a priority, this bill would

         13  have moved already.  And they haven't made it a

         14  priority, and that is why it is sitting.

         15                 And let me tell you, from a political

         16  point of view, and Rob can testify to this, at that

         17  Growth Management Task Force when you guys said

         18  suddenly, we support now the Oddo Bill, I said it

         19  was a great piece of politics.  Because now you said

         20  when it goes nowhere, it is not your responsibility;

         21  it is the fault of the City Council.  And that is

         22  what you did; you shed yourself of the

         23  responsibility, because you did not live up to your

         24  end of the bargain.  And that is why you get the

         25  attitude that you get from me at hearings like this.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  James, I

          3  would just like to comment that it is unfortunate

          4  that nothing has been done for two years.  But I

          5  think possibly what we can do at this point, is, you

          6  know, start from this point.  And it would be, I

          7  think, great if we could get some kind of a

          8  commitment, as Jim said, yes, you realize it is a

          9  real problem, yes, you are interested, and yes, we

         10  can sit down.

         11                 I kind of got the feeling that you

         12  thought that 513- A had some merit.

         13                 MR. KRAMER:  Yes, indeed.  And we

         14  have been willing, and we have met, and we are

         15  certainly willing to meet again to discuss and

         16  produce a workable bill.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Madam Chair,

         18  may I just raise one other thing?  And if the answer

         19  is, the better answer is a bill on the State level,

         20  than that will be my goal.  I have introduced

         21  legislation on the Crystalmeth (phonetic) issue, the

         22  Administration testified, some other folks, a

         23  Narcotics Prosecutor testified that this is better

         24  on the State level.  We did our job in the City

         25  Council, we kind of prompted the State and Speaker
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          2  Silver introduced a bill that I support.

          3                 And now the end game here is not for

          4  me to pass a piece of legislation.  The end game is

          5  to prevent that lady who is a constituent, or her

          6  sister, or somebody from going through what she went

          7  through.  That is the end game.  And if it comes in

          8  the form of State legislation, that is great.  But

          9  you have got to help me figure out the answer and

         10  get me the answer, so I can give them some help.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  A question I

         12  have is, you talked about paying into some type of

         13  fund, and I have heard this suggestion before.  Can

         14  something like that actually be legislated by the

         15  City?

         16                 MR. KRAMER:  I am going to turn to

         17  Counsel.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         19                 MS. ARNOLD:  We think so, the City

         20  Council was responsible for creating the Home

         21  Improvement Contractor scheme we administered

         22  through the Department of Consumer Affairs, and they

         23  have a comparable scheme.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  So I

         25  am assuming here, hopefully correctly, that we are
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          2  going to try to work something out with this bill,

          3  some amendments, some adjustments, and possibly

          4  consider this fund as a possibility.  Am I assuming

          5  correctly?

          6                 MR. KRAMER:  I think so.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  Do we

          8  have any other questions for the Administration, for

          9  the Department of Buildings?  No.  Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 We will be taking testimony now from

         12  the floor.  I am putting folks on a three- minute

         13  clock.  It is 2:15, I am hopeful we are finished by

         14  4:00.  I have a bunch of these things here, which

         15  are appearance cards.  I see that we kind of have

         16  duplicates from community associations, so what I am

         17  going to do, for instance, we have Douglaston Civic

         18  Association, and we will be doing it the same way we

         19  did testimony, we will be hearing on Melinda's bill

         20  and Tony Avella's bill first, and then we will have

         21  testimony on Jimmy's bill.

         22                 So we have Douglaston here, so I

         23  would ask that you kind of chit chat and pick one

         24  person to be the person that will testify from that

         25  particular group.  Also, Kew Forest Neighborhood
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          2  Association, we have several people, so again, if we

          3  could choose one person.  No, we have three, so that

          4  is why I am asking that you work it among yourselves

          5  as to the person that will testify.

          6                 In the meantime, oh, I am supposed to

          7  ask what their Intro. Is?  Waverly Avenue Block

          8  Association, we have a Juollie Carroll somewhere.

          9  You have no Intro. Number on here. Fifteen, okay.

         10                 We have Mitchell Grubler here from

         11  the Queens Historical Society; do you want to come

         12  up?  I am going to call two folks at the same time,

         13  so that we don't waste time, everybody wandering

         14  back and forth.  And we have, is Simon or Simeon,

         15  okay, from the Historic Districts Council.  You kind

         16  of have like, you know, common, self in common.  And

         17  do we have a clock guide back there?  Okay.  And

         18  either one of you can decide who wants to go first.

         19

         20                 MR. GRUBLER:  I'm Mitchell Grubler.

         21  I am the Executive Director of the Queens Historical

         22  Society.  I am also a member of the Queens

         23  Preservation Council, and a new group, The Four-

         24  Borough Preservation Alliance.  When I came into

         25  this room, I wasn't prepared to say briefly what I
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          2  feel I should say, and that is that I too, have the

          3  goal in mind to make sure that our traditional,

          4  historical neighborhoods are low- density

          5  neighborhoods.  Their character and their quality of

          6  life is preserved, and the enforcement of deed

          7  restrictions when it comes to preserving that

          8  historic and architectural character, is what we are

          9  interested in.

         10                 So I would urge Council Members Katz

         11  and Avella to get together and formulate a joint

         12  piece of legislation that keeps the eye on the

         13  prize, and it is your obligation representing your

         14  constituents to do that, and you know, put an end to

         15  these competing bills, which serve no purpose at

         16  all.

         17                 Intro. 15 would be an important piece

         18  of legislation whereby civic associations as well as

         19  individuals could register deed restrictions on

         20  residential properties with the City in a central

         21  registry configuration.  This would help property

         22  owners preserve and protect plots of land from being

         23  developed in a careless and haphazard manner, and

         24  ensure that neighborhoods could have a means to

         25  conserve their character and appearance for future
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          2  generations  If everyone is aware that a deed

          3  restriction exists, than that restriction can be

          4  honored. Those ignoring the restriction should be

          5  punished to the full extent of the law.

          6                 Intro. 15 would help protect

          7  neighborhoods from unwanted and inappropriate

          8  development.  We hope that you will support Intro.

          9  15.  Our communities are important to us, and we

         10  resent those uncaring developers who want to come in

         11  and get away with building inappropriate structures

         12  just to make a financial killing.  These developers

         13  by in large ignore the aesthetic and historical

         14  qualities of our neighborhoods and have no real ties

         15  to the community.

         16                 Thank you for your support in this

         17  matter.

         18                 MR. BANKOFF:  Good afternoon, Council

         19  members.  My name is Simeon Bankoff.  I am the

         20  Executive Director of the Historic Districts

         21  Council.  HDC is a 20- year- old, citywide, civic

         22  organization concerned with the preservation of New

         23  York's Historic neighborhoods, both the designated

         24  historic districts of which there are 83 plus 11

         25  according to Commissioner Tierney, and the numerous
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          2  ones that are not yet landmarks.

          3                 We have long been concerned about

          4  deed restrictions, easements, and covenants.  On a

          5  kind of philosophical level they really helped, they

          6  predated the zoning resolution and predated the

          7  landmarks law, and were truly a way for communities

          8  and developers to help create a framework for future

          9  development.  They are hugely important in that way,

         10  and they really help gain and create sort of a

         11  rational framework for planning, which I know that

         12  this Council has been very much in favor of.

         13                 We feel that the Intros. Both 15 and

         14  67 are both positive and potent tools to ensuring

         15  that this rational framework, that this framework

         16  for rational planning is enforced. I would like to

         17  sort of answer and rather, because I know there are

         18  a number of colleague groups are going to be talking

         19  about specific issues that they have confronted

         20  within their own neighborhoods, I would like to

         21  address few of the things that came up earlier with

         22  the DOB testimony, which is to wit.  We are very

         23  concerned about the characterization that this would

         24  force, enforce the Administration to enforced

         25  unenforceable qualities such as the racial issues
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          2  that some of the easements have, or even such things

          3  as barbecuing and what not.

          4                 I know that in Intro. 15, I have not

          5  really had a chance to really re- exam Intro. 67 as

          6  closely, specifically states that the easements will

          7  only be upheld in so far that they are not in

          8  competition with accepted public policy.  I would

          9  also question the Department of Buildings

         10  presumption that easements, themselves, are only for

         11  the good of the little, yet, everyone needs to, is

         12  required to support that.  There are a number of

         13  special zoning districts throughout the City which

         14  the Department of Buildings is responsible for

         15  enforcing and those have been used as ideas that the

         16  City chose as a matter of public policy, that would

         17  be enforcing the little for the greater good.  I

         18  would suggest that these are a similar kind of

         19  quality.

         20                 Finally, the City currently, people

         21  do not currently have the right to sue the City over

         22  easements as was quite rightly pointed out, it is a

         23  contract between two private agencies.  I know that

         24  in Intro. 15 actually the only time where the City

         25  would be reliable would be if they were put on

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  notice for an easement, and then did not do the

          3  required amount, they would then be reliable for a

          4  section 78, as is any action for any City agency

          5  when it was felt to be arbitrary and capricious.

          6  Otherwise, the City is protected against possibly a

          7  lot of suits. So those are the two issues I would

          8  like to address.  I assume that smaller groups will

          9  be talking about their individuals ones.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         11  both very much. We didn't have any questions.

         12  Council Member Katz is leaving, but she will be

         13  back.

         14                 We have James Trent and Sheldon

         15  Rosenblum.

         16                 MR. TRENT:  Is this on?  Good

         17  afternoon, my name is James A. Trent, President of

         18  the Metropolitan Structure Association, Inc., and

         19  let me just say it was founded 29 years ago to

         20  promote house museums and historic sites in and

         21  around New York City any general to foster the

         22  preservation of historic buildings throughout the

         23  New York City region.  I am also empowered to speak

         24  on behalf of the Queens Civic Congress, the Queens

         25  Preservation Council, and the Four- Borough
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          2  Neighborhood Preservation Alliance, three additional

          3  groups dedicated among other objectives to saving

          4  neighborhoods from inappropriate development.  By

          5  inappropriate we mean out of context construction.

          6                 I am very pleased that there has been

          7  the foresight to deal with the issue of restrictive

          8  covenants.  New York City and Queens, in particular,

          9  have had many subdivisions constructed where the

         10  developers included structures in the deeds that

         11  were intended to preserve the well- planned and

         12  coherent design of the original architects.  In many

         13  cases these covenants would have eluded duration,

         14  and unfortunately, for many neighborhoods these

         15  covenants have expired with no possibility of

         16  resuscitation.  But in other neighborhoods the

         17  covenants were written to be enforced in perpetuity.

         18    The problem is if an owner wanted to disregard his

         19  or her own deed restrictions, it would fall upon

         20  neighbors to litigate, and that in most cases it is

         21  just too costly for neighbors or even neighborhood

         22  associations to undertake.  For many people they

         23  also do not have the stomach for the combative and

         24  confrontational aspect that such litigation

         25  represents where neighbors are pitted against
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          2  neighbors.

          3                 It is a stroke of genius, frankly, to

          4  suggest that the Department of Buildings be made the

          5  enforcer of these restrictions.  We do know,

          6  however, that there is presently before the Council

          7  two competing bills, Intro. Bills 15 and 67. We feel

          8  that Intro. 15 is the superior of the two since it

          9  is more specific in its details and empowers local

         10  civic associations to file the deed restrictions

         11  with the DOB, even if the individual property owners

         12  fail to do so.  This is a critical detail, since

         13  many homeowners either will not even be aware of the

         14  restrictions, lack the knowledge or resources to

         15  file individually, or who may even be anti- social

         16  enough to want to flaunt the restrictions regardless

         17  of the deleterious consequences to the larger

         18  community.

         19                 I think we all know that no one buys

         20  merely a home, but one buys a community as well.

         21  Before purchasing a home, we look for amenities such

         22  as houses of worship, location and quality of

         23  schools, availability of shopping, transit

         24  connections, and ambiance of the general

         25  neighborhood.  It simply cannot be argued that
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          2  individuals have a right to alter their premises

          3  without regard for how such changes will affect the

          4  overall character and property values of their

          5  neighbors.

          6                 Intro. 15 will give communities an

          7  additional preservation tool at this time of severe

          8  development pressures on low- density neighborhoods.

          9    The early 20th century saw subdivisions in New

         10  York City that cannot be replicated today because of

         11  prohibitive costs and in many cases, a loss of the

         12  artistic skills to provide the architecture details

         13  that many of the houses incorporated in their

         14  design.

         15                 While our organizations continues to

         16  move forward on many preservation fronts such as

         17  landmarking code enforcement, tighter zoning, and

         18  the fight to rein in the Board of Standards and

         19  Appeals, this deed restrictions bill is potentially

         20  a potent weapon that we need at our disposal.  We

         21  urge speedy passage of Intro. 15.

         22                 The comments made by DOB about the

         23  nuances of these statements provisions, generally

         24  they say that a property anybody can use for a one-

         25  family home, I don't see what the nuances are there.
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          2    Or they will say that factories cannot be located

          3  in a particular site, and they will generally

          4  mention the kinds of factories that are prohibited.

          5  So I don't see why this is such a fuzzy thing that

          6  they feel is going to be litigious.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          8  Sir.

          9                 MR. ROSENBLUM:  Good afternoon.  My

         10  name is Sheldon Rosenblum.  I am the Vice President

         11  on the Board of Directors of the Westmoreland

         12  Association, which is located in Little Neck,

         13  Queens.  I have been a resident of Westmoreland

         14  since 1979.  Westmoreland was organized in 1978,

         15  incorporated in 1924, and it is established by the

         16  Rickert- Finlay map that dates from 1907, which is

         17  the original development.  It was originally a farm

         18  that crossed the boundaries of Queens and Nassau,

         19  which was subdivided and developed.

         20                 Barrier affected by Westmoreland is

         21  Little Neck Parkway to Nassau Road, which extends

         22  into Nassau County, Northern Boulevard to the Long

         23  Island Railroad, encompasses approximate 400 homes,

         24  95 percent of the community is in Queens. All the

         25  original deeds that was part of the Rickert- Finlay
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          2  Subdivision contain the covenant restrictions.

          3  There are roughly a dozen covenant restrictions in

          4  issue in Westmoreland.

          5                 The covenant restrictions also

          6  separately recorded with the map, and referenced by

          7  subsequent deeds. Notwithstanding this title

          8  companies routinely overlook the covenants and

          9  restrictions, and then most often not found in the

         10  title reports so respective purchases and developers

         11  are not aware of them.  If it was filed with the

         12  Buildings Department they would be on notice to send

         13  their work as of zoning, and it would be a

         14  convenient place for them to locate them and

         15  discover them before a builder or a purchaser made

         16  an investment in their property.

         17                 The Westmoreland Association was

         18  formed to enforce the regulations, and we vigorously

         19  enforced them.  We monitor all plans either on- line

         20  through the Community Board, whereas the area is

         21  under vast pressure by developers.  There are extra

         22  lots which are undeveloped, people have developed

         23  lots, which are selling off, and there are some

         24  homes on 80- foot lots.  The zoning is 40 X 100,

         25  these beautiful old houses are being knocked down
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          2  and two 40 X 100 approximately are being put up in

          3  their place, which developers are getting in excess

          4  of a million dollars already.  A recent lot, 50 X

          5  100 was sold in the neighborhood in the recent weeks

          6  for $750,000, just for the lots.

          7                 This has resulted in litigation, most

          8  recently West Cutter Associates tried to develop

          9  several houses in the area.  We expended in excess

         10  of $200,000 litigating it, being successful on

         11  appeal to the Appellate Division.

         12                 The benefits of the new law would be

         13  notice to all builders that can look up what they

         14  are getting into before they purchase it.  The DOB

         15  will enforce it and monitor it, and it will be an

         16  economic advantage to all parties, neither us nor

         17  the developers or perspective purchasers will be

         18  involved in unnecessary litigation.

         19                 The Buildings Department says they

         20  cannot interpret it.  One of our simple requirements

         21  are that the houses be set back 20 feet, instead of

         22  15 feet for zoning.  In effect what that does is it

         23  eliminate legal two- families, that extra five feet

         24  we have found creates a legal two- family.  If they

         25  are back 20 feet from the curb instead of 15 feet,
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          2  they cannot effectively put in legal two- families.

          3                 Also they are not allowed to put up

          4  fences in the front, limited to one- family homes.

          5  However, two important points, this legislation, I

          6  haven't seen 67, but 15 would not preclude any

          7  private association individual from protecting their

          8  own rights by going to court, it would be

          9  additional.  It would not preclude litigation if

         10  somebody disagreed with the Building Department.

         11  And also we are favor in the fact that this Intro.

         12  15 seems to bypass the BSA.  It requires only

         13  overriding by Court of Competent Jurisdiction, which

         14  we are in favor of, because we find the BSA as being

         15  a rubber stamp to any developers seeking a variance

         16  or approval of something.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19  We have been joined by Council Member Robert

         20  Jackson, a member of the Committee.  Do we have any

         21  questions?

         22                 I am going to switch, this is a very

         23  odd hearing because we have three bills that we are

         24  doing, and the other one that we haven't even

         25  touched on yet.  I am going to switch to testimony
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          2  on 513- A.  You will remember that is James Oddo's

          3  bill. Alan Friedman, Elizabeth Mitchell, okay, just

          4  decide which one of you wants to go first.

          5                 MR. FRIEDMAN:  I won.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You won,

          7  okay.

          8                 MR. FRIEDMAN:  I am Alan Friedman.  I

          9  am a homeowner on Staten Island.  I was fascinated

         10  by the representative of the Department of Buildings

         11  saying that under present legislation they have no

         12  difficulty determining how to assign liability.

         13  Because I wish you would call the Staten Island

         14  Office of the Department of Buildings because they

         15  don't have a clue.

         16                 My particular problem is that the

         17  property adjacent to me was developed.  They took

         18  down a one- family house, and he built seven

         19  attached houses.  In the process of doing this, I

         20  was flooded.  I called 3- 1- 1, they investigated,

         21  they told me there is no problem.  I called the

         22  Department of Buildings, they investigated, they

         23  told me there was no problem. I finally went to my

         24  Councilman, who said, I will take a look. He came,

         25  he looked, he said that property is higher than
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          2  yours; you are going to get flooded.

          3                 He also had a liaison from the

          4  Department of Buildings appear with the original

          5  permits, the original plans rather.  We looked at

          6  the plans, he said, over here it says retaining

          7  wall, where is it?  The liaison said I cannot find

          8  it. Neither could my Councilman, Mr. Oddo.  He said

          9  go back to the Department of Buildings and tell

         10  them, find the wall, put it where it belongs.

         11                 Now while I was waiting for this to

         12  get done, I contacted the District Attorney's Office

         13  and asked them the following question.  How is it

         14  possible for someone to get a certificate of

         15  occupancy, when the plans show a retaining wall, and

         16  the wall is not there?  Is it carelessness,

         17  oversight, incompetence, or perhaps a criminal act?

         18  Eventually, my letter was passed through the

         19  District Attorney to the Department of Investigation

         20  to the Inspector General's Office, and finally to

         21  the Department of Buildings, where it started.  And

         22  they said they would conduct an audit.

         23                 When I spoke to the Commissioner's

         24  Office at the Department of Buildings, he said, I

         25  believe an amended plan was filed.  I said, do you
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          2  have it?  He said no, but I believe there is one.

          3  By an amended plan I asked him, you mean an

          4  architect self- certified plan?  He said, yes.  I

          5  said are you telling me that you believe the

          6  architect said you don't need a wall.  He said,

          7  right.  I said, well, Mother Nature says it needs a

          8  wall. I asked is the architect liable, he said no.

          9  I said well is the builder liable, he said, well,

         10  gee I don't know.  I said, well isn't the builder

         11  supposed to post a bond guaranteeing his work for at

         12  least a year?  He said, I think so.  I said, can you

         13  check, is there a bond, is he responsible, can the

         14  bond be called, how can the bond be called?  He said

         15  he would check with the Legal Department, that was

         16  two months ago.

         17                 Obviously, there is something wrong

         18  with the construction industry, and it is obviously

         19  something wrong with the Department of Buildings, at

         20  least as far as Staten Island is concerned.  They do

         21  not react to what the law says, specifically over

         22  here with regard to lot size.

         23                 There is, this same builder, Mr.

         24  Galanti filed permits to build two one- family homes

         25  on a property of 7,500 square feet.  The zoning
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          2  regulations are 3,800 square feet for one building.

          3  Two times 38, is he doesn't have enough room, but

          4  they gave him permits.  I asked how could he get the

          5  permits? They said it was legal.  Something is

          6  wrong.

          7                 I would also say, if you can mandate

          8  a warranty, or if you can mandate some recourse, it

          9  would be meaningful, because they don't know how to

         10  assign liability.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         13                 MS. MITCHELL:  Hi, my name is

         14  Elizabeth Mitchell. I am a homeowner on Staten

         15  Island.  I would just like to read a statement.

         16                 Good afternoon, Chairperson

         17  Provenzano and Council members.  Thank you for the

         18  opportunity to testify today in support of Bill No.

         19  513- A.  It is crucial that the proposed amendments

         20  be approved and implemented as soon as possible.

         21  Without this legislation public safety is at eminent

         22  risk, and a fury of construction is therefore

         23  believed supported.  Despite countless days, weeks,

         24  and months of continuous pleas for help, I have

         25  moved only a small step forward in resolving my new
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          2  home purchase of five years.

          3                 It is quite a lengthy story and often

          4  dull to most, however, to me it is the greatest

          5  fight for justice that I could ever imagined.

          6  Please understand that my statements are general and

          7  do not apply to the numerous professional builders

          8  who currently construct quality homes and buildings

          9  in our community.  My statement is to bring

         10  attention to the injustices suffered, which implore

         11  the immediate change in the law.

         12                 I purchased my newly constructed home

         13  five years ago, and as of today, I am without a

         14  permanent certificate of occupancy.  The builder

         15  deliberately ignored all correspondence regarding

         16  construction defects, including one situation that

         17  was so severe the Building Department issued an

         18  emergency vacate order.  The order was issued

         19  because there was eminent danger to the safety and

         20  life of the occupants.  Imagine my astonishment

         21  after I had alerted DOB of the builder's neglect,

         22  and they responded back that this was a private

         23  matter between me and the builder, and that they do

         24  not have the authority to take action, nor can they

         25  force the builder to do any work.
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          2                 Sure, I sought legal counsel for my

          3  closing attorney, as well as several additional

          4  counselors who all stated, although they believe

          5  that I had a viable case, I would never be able to

          6  collect any damages.  Therefore, my money was better

          7  spent correcting the problem, rather than suing the

          8  builder.  The estimates I received ranged from

          9  $21,000 to $55,000.  Soon after I became the

         10  defendant when the violations were issued for the

         11  construction defect and its expired certificates.

         12                 The judge ruled in his decision that

         13  although I presented an abundant evidence that the

         14  contractor did substandard and shoddy work, as well

         15  as produced numerous letters and claims that we

         16  either ignored or responded to with empty promises,

         17  he further understands that the violations issued

         18  can realistically only be addressed with the

         19  cooperation of the architect, contractor, and DOB.

         20  He also acknowledged that I have made substantial

         21  efforts to secure the cooperation of these parties.

         22  His decision, unfortunately, was to uphold the

         23  violation and impose a minimal penalty that carried

         24  a significant fine.

         25                 In several attempts to recover the
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          2  damages, I successfully won two judgments against

          3  the builder in civil court.  However, money has yet

          4  to be collected.  The builder has chosen once again

          5  to disregard the court ruling and its legal and

          6  moral obligations.  This builder has made a mockery

          7  of the legal and public systems as he continues to

          8  conduct business as usual.              A

          9  combination of the above instances shows the

         10  absolute need for legislation and enforcement.  Bill

         11  No. 513- A affords the City of New York to recapture

         12  the public's trust as it moves forward in protecting

         13  the individual from callous builders who hide behind

         14  corporate walls with total disregard for the rules,

         15  policies, and the law.

         16                 Without this amendment builders may

         17  continue to operate under there many assumed names

         18  or corporations until such time as it is convenient

         19  for them to dissolve.  I purchased my home from a

         20  career builder with annual home sales in the

         21  millions.  I expected more established foundation

         22  for a business profession, than a last known

         23  building site and a P.O. Box.  This bill will

         24  provide the structure necessary for more stable

         25  institution of professionals and eliminate the
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          2  liabilities.  The proposed bill cannot guarantee

          3  quality construction, but it can identify

          4  substandard workmanship and ensure that the

          5  continuous disregard for public safety and well

          6  being will not be tolerated.

          7                 The citizens of the City need your

          8  help, I urge you to approve this bill, 513- A.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:   Thank you.

         10                 MS. MITCHELL:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Question.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Just a quick

         13  comment, I just want to thank Ms. Mitchell and Mr.

         14  Friedman for coming to City Hall today.  I am keenly

         15  familiar with both of these cases, and these are but

         16  two of what is probably a very large universe of

         17  folks who have tried to navigate the waters in this

         18  system, and have been drowning slowly.  And they

         19  paint the picture better than I can, and I thank

         20  them for coming up here and putting a face to the

         21  problem that we are trying to address.

         22                 By the way, Mr. Friedman has some of

         23  the best fruit trees you will find on Staten Island.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.
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          2  Robert Altman.  We are still testifying on 513- A.

          3                 MR. ALTMAN:  Good afternoon, Madam

          4  Chair.  My name is Robert Altman.  I am here

          5  representing today the Queens and Bronx Building

          6  Association and the Building Industry Association of

          7  New York City.  I seem to have left the Building

          8  Association's testimony at my office; I will get it

          9  forwarded over to Ms. Nasser.

         10                 I don't feel a need to, in fact,

         11  reiterate what is in the written testimony that is

         12  provided.  I do want to add a few things though,

         13  however, based upon summarizing the testimony.

         14                 I sympathize with the homeowners who

         15  testified today and who are going to testify today.

         16  I would like to note that whoever testifies today,

         17  the other side is not here able to give their side

         18  of the story, and there is, in fact, two sides to

         19  the story.  And I am not defending the other side; I

         20  am just noting that there probably is another side.

         21  And they may not even have known this hearing

         22  existed.

         23                 That much said, we do have examples

         24  in our industry with respect to issues that we have

         25  with homeowners.  As you know, there is temporary
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          2  certificate of occupancies, which people can close

          3  with.  And what happens often for us, as builders,

          4  is that people will then make changes on it.  For

          5  example, if you get a TCO, and then someone decides

          6  they want to add a deck between the TCO and the

          7  permanent CO, Buildings will not grant the permanent

          8  CO unless the homeowner has, in fact, filed for that

          9  deck.  So we all of sudden get into fights over

         10  getting the permanent CO, because it is not our

         11  responsibility if we did not contract to build the

         12  deck.

         13                 Additionally, there is concern here

         14  because a number, at least with respect to the

         15  Building Industry Association of New York City, they

         16  have, in fact, been on record as being supportive of

         17  a registration or modified licensing scheme.  But

         18  have not been approached by any of the sponsors

         19  about that, and their support for such a scheme

         20  predates this City Council.  They are not adverse to

         21  a homebuilder warranty being part of that scheme,

         22  but in fact, no one has approached the Building

         23  Industry Association regarding that.

         24                 And there is, under State law, a

         25  warranty with respect to new homes.  That you could,
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          2  in fact, have enforcement of, but that enforcement

          3  has to take care, be taking place also from the

          4  District Attorney level, and from the General

          5  Attorney level.  So there are protections in place.

          6                 That much said there certainly are

          7  bad builders out there, we are aware of that.  They

          8  are problems for us as well.  And we would, in fact,

          9  like to ensure that bad builders do not, in fact,

         10  build homes.  However, there is a concern when in

         11  fact that a licensing requirement is limited just to

         12  homeowners, we don't see a reason why it should not

         13  take into account everybody, which makes us concern,

         14  which especially makes Queens concerned that this

         15  more of a witch hunt than a good faith effort.  And

         16  unless you are willing to also bring in multiple

         17  dwellings, commercial entities, commercial officer

         18  buildings, it seems that this bill is too narrow,

         19  and we feel good faith efforts would take everybody

         20  into account.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         23  Bob. Questions?  Why did I know you would have them?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Good to see you

         25  again, Bob. And for many years you sat on this side
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          2  of the dais, so I have a lot of respect for you

          3  working as a former colleague.  I can ensure you

          4  this is not a witch- hunt.  In fact, it is kind of

          5  funny to be criticized that we made it too narrow,

          6  because some of the concerns that we heard with

          7  previous incarnations of bills is that it was too

          8  broad.  And we wanted to focus this, because at its

          9  essence this really is intended to be a consumer

         10  protection bill.  So we wanted to focus it on, in

         11  that manner, that is why we made it specific to

         12  one-, two-, and three- family homeowners.

         13                 If there is support in the Council

         14  and in the industry to broaden it, by all means I

         15  would want that.  But I came at this with the

         16  experience of constituents cases, frankly. So,

         17  believe me, it is not a witch- hunt, it is intended

         18  to be specific to address what we thought was a very

         19  specific problem.

         20                 With that said, I think that your

         21  point about having formal conversations with a wider

         22  universe of the industry is a good one.  We have had

         23  informal conversations with a lot of the folks on

         24  Staten Island; they have known where we are coming

         25  with this.  In fact, Randy Lee, who represents the
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          2  Building Industry on Staten Island sat at the very

          3  table at the Growth Management Task Force, somewhat

          4  controversial in the media that he would even have a

          5  seat at the table, but he certainly had a seat at

          6  the table, and was a very active, and very

          7  important, I will say, player in that process.  So

          8  he certainly knew where we were coming from.  But

          9  again, that is only Staten Island, that is not the

         10  broader universe, and I take your point, and I think

         11  it is a good point.  And we will set up something so

         12  that everybody has a seat at the table.

         13                 MR. ALTMAN:  I also think that Randy

         14  Lee has publicly gone on the record that, as you

         15  know, there is a model in New Jersey for

         16  registration and for home warranties as part of

         17  that.  And Staten Islanders, I think often said that

         18  it used the New Jersey model as the model that the

         19  City might wish to consider.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  And I will take

         21  your point a step further and say that Mr. Lee was

         22  as surprised as I was when the Building Department

         23  came in after nine, ten, eleven months and said, we

         24  punt, so.

         25                 But with that said, if today is the
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          2  start of a new process, and I guess that is what we

          3  are hearing from DOB, then we absolutely look

          4  forward to having the folks that you represent and

          5  anyone else that you can recommend to sit at the

          6  table.

          7                 MR. ALTMAN:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          9  Member Jackson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

         11  afternoon.  I just wanted to comment because I sat

         12  here and I listened to the testimony of these two

         13  homeowners, and it is really a shame how they, in my

         14  opinion, are being shafted.

         15                 MR. ALTMAN:  It is a shame.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And so as a

         17  representative of the Building Industry, not

         18  necessarily in their area, I would ask you to please

         19  reach out to your colleague and ask them to meet

         20  with them to try to adjudicate their particular

         21  matters.

         22                 MR. ALTMAN:  I don't know if the

         23  people who have had problems with these homes are

         24  actually members.  And as I said, there are in fact,

         25  even if they are or not, there are, in fact, two
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          2  sides to every story, without listening to it, I

          3  don't, you know, I am not going to say whether they

          4  are right or wrong.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I understand

          6  that.  But you have colleagues in the industry, and

          7  colleagues that represent the area where they live.

          8  I am asking you to reach out to your colleagues and

          9  ask them to try to look into this, to try to come to

         10  a solution, to reach consensus with these

         11  homeowners. Because what happens is these

         12  homeowners, in my opinion, come here with situations

         13  like this, and I don't you really, but my colleague

         14  Jim Oddo said you sat on the other side, so you know

         15  what the situation is.

         16                 The bottomed line is, that this woman

         17  and the man who spoke, I feel for them, okay.

         18                 MR. ALTMAN:  I would say the

         19  following, if they are in fact, if they gave me the

         20  information with their builder, I will have it

         21  checked into with respect to whether they are

         22  members.  We do have, the members out on Staten

         23  Island or Building Industry Association have

         24  problems with various builders that are out there,

         25  because they give them a bad name, and that concerns
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          2  them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And that is

          4  why we are moving with this legislation.  So from an

          5  industry point of view, maybe you all need to talk

          6  about that from a holistic point of view.  Because

          7  then you force us, you, the industry force us to

          8  take action in order to protect the little people.

          9                 MR. ALTMAN:  And as I said, the

         10  Building Industry Association of New York City has

         11  been on the record, predating this City Council as

         12  supporting a scheme of licensing similar to that

         13  that is in New Jersey.  And that would protect these

         14  people.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, since

         16  you offered them, I am sure that the woman is going

         17  to give you her name and stuff like that, so you

         18  can, and the other gentleman who is here, the other

         19  homeowners, is he still here, or has he left

         20  already. Jim, I am sure that you can give it to him.

         21    Because, you know, the industry needs to try to

         22  clean up itself.  Just like the City Council, we are

         23  trying to clean up ourselves also.  You know we have

         24  had several members up on allegation of charges, we

         25  take action, so....
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, let's

          3   - -

          4                 MR. ALTMAN:  To those who are in fact

          5  that are members that we can talk to, we will talk

          6  to.  Those that we have problems with they may take

          7  what we say and run the other way with it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I understand

          9  that.  But as an industry, you know, - -

         10                 MR. ALTMAN:  Oh, we understand.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: - -  you can

         12  communicate as an industry.

         13                 MR. ALTMAN:  We understand.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, thank

         15  you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         17  Thank you very much, Bob.  We still have a lot of

         18  people on the list to testify, so.

         19                 Juollie Carroll, I think this is

         20  Cornwell Martin; do we have a Cornwell Martin in the

         21  room?  Who is Cornwell Martin?  Do you want to come

         22  up and testify?  Where are you from? Oh, so you

         23  belong with them, okay.  Okay, so I am going to put

         24  you here, and by the way, we are back on 15.  So you

         25  guys stay there for a minute.  Is there a Glen
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          2  Schleyor here?  Where are you?  So if you are behind

          3  the pole, I cannot see you.  You come up.

          4                 So, Mr. Martin, you belong with these

          5  other folks, and you are giving your, ah, we will

          6  work that out later.  One of you may start.

          7                 MS. CARROLL:  Good afternoon.  My

          8  name is Juollie Carroll.  I represent the Waverly

          9  Avenue Block Association.  The Waverly Avenue Block

         10  Association is located in Brooklyn, Waverly Avenue

         11  between Myrtle and Park Avenue.

         12                 I am here this afternoon to support

         13  the Intro. 15 Deed Restriction Bill, because in our

         14  community improper development and construction has

         15  caused an unsafe environment, displacement of

         16  current residents, and damage of properties. This

         17  development will also cause what I consider

         18  overpopulation in the block.

         19                 Construction is currently going on,

         20  has been going on since March 2005.  None of the

         21  community residents were notified that construction

         22  was on the way to take place.  We noted from the

         23  permits that, in fact, construction had arrived just

         24  by observing.  We note that the permits were

         25  obtained in September 2004.
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          2                 I would like to read a letter to you

          3  that the Waverly Avenue Association residents, in

          4  fact, drafted to the Department of Buildings.  This

          5  letter was drafted April 20th, 2005, and it was sent

          6  to the Department of Buildings to the Chief of

          7  Building Construction.  Several residents in the

          8  neighborhood also called in complaints to 3- 1- 1.

          9  The letter, in fact, indicates that we, the

         10  residents of Waverly Avenue between Park Avenue and

         11  Myrtle Avenue request the Department of Buildings to

         12  immediately revoke the building permits of 93

         13  Waverly Avenue, 97, 107, 109, due to the contractor

         14  ABGG Construction Corp., 295 Hayward Street,

         15  Brooklyn, New York, disrupted the water table of the

         16  block causing severe cracking and movement of the

         17  adjoining building on the block.

         18                 It was also noted there was no

         19  building permits posted for the construction sites

         20  95 and 105 Waverly Avenue.  The foundation of

         21  building numbers 99, 101, 103 Waverly Avenue have

         22  already been disrupted.  Three families were

         23  displaced.  And building 99 Waverly Avenue is now

         24  scheduled to be demolished.

         25                 The contractor has totally
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          2  disregarded the neighborhood with the excavation

          3  depth causing every fence and backyard south of the

          4  project to shift at least 15 degrees off level.

          5  Fences are falling down and buildings are cracking.

          6                 All of the above conditions have

          7  caused an unsafe environment, and there could be

          8  possible violations of the Building Codes.  We

          9  request that the Department of Buildings intervene

         10  immediately to investigate the structural integrity

         11  of the block.

         12                 I just want to say that we certainly

         13  do support the bill, and we certainly all support

         14  from the Council, as well as our Councilperson to

         15  support us in this effort.  We have received the

         16  notification from the Building Department that they

         17  received our letter, and they would investigate, but

         18  to date, no avail.

         19                 Thank you so much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         21  Next.

         22                 MR. SCHLEYOR:  Hi, my name is Glen

         23  Schleyor.  I am not a member of any neighborhood

         24  association; I am just a private citizen speaking on

         25  my own behalf, and on behalf of my family in support
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          2  of Intro. No. 15.  A year ago, my family, me and my

          3  wife, and my two young children moved into, moved

          4  from Brooklyn into Queens into an area with single

          5  family homes that back from the street, a real

          6  neighborhood, some place we want to live for the

          7  rest of our lives and to raise our children.

          8                 And, you know, we moved from an

          9  historic district in Brooklyn into an area in

         10  Queens, in Forest Hills that is not zoned as an

         11  historic district, but we took comfort in the fact

         12  that were restrictive covenants in our deeds and

         13  other deeds in the neighborhood.  It is a

         14  neighborhood with a rich history, and it was very

         15  important to us, as a lawyer, I know that

         16  restrictive covenants of this type are enforceable

         17  and are enforced by the courts, and are an integral

         18  part of these neighborhoods.  So it was a surprise

         19  to me later to learn that despite the validity, the

         20  legal validity in the strength of this

         21  enforceability of these restrictive covenants that

         22  in fact there is not a mechanism in place to really

         23  prevent, to really address them and prevent them

         24  from being steamrolled, literally, I guess by

         25  development, by the race to development.
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          2                 And I just wanted to, I didn't

          3  necessarily come here preparing to speak, but after

          4  hearing the arguments of the Building Department I

          5  just felt compelled to counter some of the, whether

          6  well meaning or not, some of the, I think, confusing

          7  points that we made.  One that restrictive covenants

          8  have a checkered history and are extremely

          9  complicated, all of which is true, but it is

         10  completely off point, because this bill will address

         11  a situation where the issuance of a permit or the

         12  completion of the development, you know,

         13  construction set forth in the permit, will violate

         14  the restrictive covenant.  And the only restrictive

         15  covenants that arguably will be in that situation

         16  are the ones that have actual, very common ones that

         17  have factual limitations on the type of building

         18  that can be put up.

         19                 So, you know, bringing in the

         20  barbecuing in the backyard, and the racial history

         21  of restrictive covenants is really off point here.

         22  Also, another point that was made is that

         23  restrictive covenants are, you know, were kind of

         24  dismissed, as often not enforced, and that is

         25  exactly the reason that this is important.  This is
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          2  a situation, this is a procedure that puts the

          3  burden on homeowner associations to put the City on

          4  notice, and indirectly put developers on notice that

          5  in this situation, this is one of the maybe rare

          6  restrictive covenants that somebody does care about,

          7  and somebody is willing to enforce.  And that is to

          8  everyone's benefit.  It certainly is not a benefit

          9  to a developer to not find out until after the

         10  building is half up that somebody is challenging it.

         11    It is something that should be addressed at the

         12  outset, and this is what this is designed to do. It

         13  is a simple administrative procedure.

         14                 Thanks.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         16  very much. Okay for you, you usually stay with me to

         17  the bitter end, but okay.  All right, I will forgive

         18  you.

         19                 We have two people here from

         20  Douglaston Civic Association, William Sievers and

         21  Eliott Socci.

         22                 MR. SOCCI:  I represent Douglaston

         23  Civic Association; this gentleman is representing

         24  the Douglaston/Little Neck Historic Society.

         25                 MR. SIEVERS:  Slight or similar the
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          2  name, but we really have different membership.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, so

          4  then the two of you want to come up.  Okay, either

          5  one of you start.

          6                 MR. SIEVERS:  Madam Chairlady,

          7  members of the Committee, good afternoon.  My name

          8  is William Sievers.  I am the Vice President of the

          9  Douglaston/Little Neck Historic Society. Our

         10  historic society counts amongst its membership

         11  approximately 150 property owners.  The

         12  Douglaston/Little Neck Historic Society

         13  wholeheartedly is in favor of passage of Intro. 15.

         14  It is one of many, much needed tools that will help

         15  combat the predatory redevelopment in Northeast

         16  Queens, in the Borough of Queens, and in New York

         17  City in general.

         18                 This legislation will make it more

         19  practical for homeowners to have existing deed

         20  covenants and newly crafted covenants registered.

         21  Thereby facilitating adherence and enforcement.  The

         22  City has many great places in its neighborhoods that

         23  were carefully crafted when they were originally

         24  designed. Homeowners Associations and community

         25  groups usually administer their covenants.
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          2  Individual homeowners will now also have the

          3  opportunity to record covenants that reflect their

          4  wishes for the future use and preservation of their

          5  properties.  The aim always is to protect the sense

          6  of place.

          7                 Passage of this legislation will not

          8  in any way undermine the concept of personal

          9  property rights.  But rather protect those rights

         10  for homeowners who wish to register the restrictive

         11  deed covenants.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. SOCCI:  Madam Chairperson and

         15  members of the Committee, my name is Eliott Socci.

         16  I am President of the Douglaston Civic Association.

         17  I am speaking in favor of Intro. 15 to have the City

         18  take responsibility for deed restrictions and

         19  covenants.  As a brief example of why I am here:

         20                 In my community there is an enclave

         21  of approximately 32 homes known as Winchester

         22  Estates.  The deeds for this area all include

         23  restrictions and covenants.  Yet, when a developer

         24  ignored these clauses, it appeared that the

         25  residents, it was a fact that the residents had no
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          2  recourse to the City for support of their position.

          3  In this case, court costs would have been

          4  prohibitive since the community was also fighting

          5  another developer who was proposing to build on land

          6  known to be a cemetery.  They won the case involving

          7  the cemetery; they lost the case involving the

          8  restrictions and covenants.

          9                 Homeowners and whole communities need

         10  protection from abusive developers, of which there

         11  are too many.  An important aspect of Intro. 15 is

         12  that civic associations can act as agents for

         13  homeowners or group of homeowners.  This proposal,

         14  if enacted, would provide a measure of protection

         15  for homeowners, or groups of homeowners who seek to

         16  preserve their community.

         17                 Since the City requires deeds to be

         18  on file, it appears to be logical that the City

         19  would be the agent to enforce all aspects of filed

         20  deeds, assuming that they are constitutional and do

         21  not violate public policy.

         22                 Therefore, I urge you to vote in

         23  favor of Intro. 15.

         24                 I would like to take a little bit of

         25  extra time, and maybe you can relay this message to
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          2  James Oddo.  I appreciate his message regarding the

          3  true or false quiz that he gave you.  I would

          4  suggest to him that he rename it, truth or

          5  consequences, because it is a negative consequence

          6  of the issues that we are talking about today that

          7  bring most of the people to this room.

          8                 Thank you for your time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         10  Okay, Walter Mugdan, okay.  Rebecca Sheehan.

         11                 MR. MUGDAN:  Thank you, Madam

         12  Chairwoman, members of the Committee.  My name is

         13  Walter Mugdan.  I am President of the UDALS Code

         14  Preservation Committee; I am also a resident of

         15  Little Neck, New York in the Westmoreland area.  I

         16  am a member of the Westmoreland Association; the

         17  Westmoreland Development is an area that has

         18  restrictive covenants in the deeds of the properties

         19  there.  I am here to speak today in enthusiastic

         20  support of Intro. 15 for many of the reasons that

         21  you have heard mentioned by some of the other

         22  speakers.  This is a very, very essential and

         23  helpful bill for homeowners such as those that make

         24  up my organization.

         25                 The members of my organization have,
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          2  at least on four occasions over the last century,

          3  had to put their own resources into enforcement of

          4  these covenants.  The fact that they have done so

          5  underscores how important a right and how valuable

          6  an asset the covenants are to us.  Individual

          7  members have invested a great deal of money in

          8  funding these lawsuits, but it is an enormous

          9  burden, and with the kind of rapacious development

         10  that is going on, it becomes more and more difficult

         11  to match the resources that the developers can put

         12  into litigation.  And that is why this bill is so

         13  helpful to us.

         14                 It is my understanding that the

         15  Department of Buildings expressed a concern that it

         16  would have, if this bill was passed, it would have

         17  to administer covenants such as whether you could do

         18  a backyard barbecuing, or certain things having to

         19  do with landscaping.  And we don't believe that is

         20  true, we think that the only covenants that the

         21  Department of Buildings needs to consider are those

         22  that would be directly relevant to the permits they

         23  issue.  For example, we have a covenant on setback.

         24  Our setback requirement is very explicitly and

         25  clearly stated as being 20 feet.  The zoning setback
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          2  would be 15 feet, that is the minimum required under

          3  the Zoning Law.

          4                 We don't think that that is any

          5  interpretational problem for the Department of

          6  Buildings, if there were something like a fence

          7  requirement as we have in our covenants, that is not

          8  a matter that would be relevant to the Buildings

          9  Department issuance of a permit, and therefore, we

         10  don't think the Buildings Department needs to

         11  concern itself with that.

         12                 The Buildings Department expressed

         13  concern that this was an exercise of police power

         14  and they would have to monitor and enforce, and

         15  suggested that the people could call a cop, if

         16  somebody were barbecuing in their backyard.  We

         17  don't really think that is accurate.  We can't today

         18  call a policeman even when a zoning ordinance is

         19  being violated.  If somebody is doing illegal

         20  demolition, for example, without a permit, we can't

         21  call a policeman, we have to file a complaint and

         22  let that go through properly.

         23                 We think that this bill will be

         24  particularly helpful to builders and to perspective

         25  purchasers.  What it will do is it will avoid
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          2  unnecessary litigation, and avoid the unnecessary

          3  expenditure of money by all of these organizations,

          4  and by the builders and the purchasers of these

          5  properties.

          6                 We are very pleased that both Council

          7  Members Avella and Katz stated that they both agree

          8  that only a court of competent jurisdiction could

          9  defeat or overturn one of these covenants.  We

         10  wholeheartedly agree with that, the Board of

         11  Standards and Appeals should not be involved in

         12  that.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15  Rebecca.

         16                 MS. SHEEHAN:  Hi, thank you, Chair

         17  Provenzano.  I am here on behalf of Council Member

         18  Avella, since he is still tied up across the street

         19  chairing his Zoning and Franchises hearing.  So I

         20  appreciate - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  But are you

         22  giving his testimony?

         23                 MS. SHEEHAN:  No, I am not.  I am

         24  just actually going to read into the record

         25  testimony that was received from different civics
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          2  that he wanted to have read into the record. And

          3  since he cannot get back over here.  If you would

          4  rather them just be submitted as written, that is

          5  fine.  I had asked Counsel if we could read it into

          6  the record.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes, I would

          8  prefer that we submit it as written because we still

          9  have so many folks.

         10                 MS. SHEEHAN:  May I just make one

         11  comment on his behalf, I know he wanted to clarify

         12  something that he believed, I hope that is in order

         13  to do at this moment?  I just wanted to clarify that

         14  in Intro. 15 it clearly states in the Memorandum

         15  that it would only be, that this would only require

         16  the Department of Buildings to enforce those

         17  restrictive covenants that are not in violation of

         18  public policy.  So the issues that were raised by

         19  the Department of Buildings Counsel about you know,

         20  racial issues and things like that would not be

         21  anything. And that can be addressed possibly in

         22  making an amended version of the Intro.

         23                 And one other issue that I would like

         24  to address too, is that, as Council Member Avella

         25  understands right now, you know, property owners who

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  have these restrictive covenants in their deeds,

          3  they don't currently have a statutory cause of

          4  action to go after the City for doing anything about

          5  those covenants.  As the Department of Buildings

          6  Counsel correctly stated that is a matter of private

          7  contract and the parties can litigate against one

          8  another.  What this bill would do, what Intro. 15

          9  would do, it would create a statutory cause of

         10  action for those property owners who file with the

         11  Department of Buildings their deeds.  And it would

         12  limit that to only those people who file their

         13  deeds, and that is actually a help to the City that

         14  it prevents some liability going against the City

         15  for all those deeds that could be out there that

         16  they may not know of.  So I just wanted to clarify

         17  that point on his behalf.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         20  Rebecca.  On Intro. 15 we have the three folks from

         21  Kew Forest Neighborhood Association, but I see two

         22  of you have the same address, so you live at the

         23  same, do you have the same story to tell?  We have

         24  Frank Lang, whoever he is, he can come up.  Is that

         25  Frank, you are Frank, you were hiding behind the
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          2  pole too.  And then we have Tina Chan and Hinged Wah

          3  Lai, but you are all from the same group, so I don't

          4  know how we are going to work this out but. He

          5  represents the Civic Group, and you represent who,

          6  the Civic Group also?

          7                 MR. LAI:  I am a member, but I am

          8  here to speak as a litigant in dealing with this.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So Frank why

         10  don't you sit down with him.  We will determine

         11  after you speak if we will go onto the other two.

         12  Okay, will either one of you start?

         13                 MR. LAI:  Okay, thank you.

         14  Distinguished members of Council, ladies and

         15  gentlemen, I thank you for the opportunity to

         16  address the City Council of the City of New York.

         17  My name is Hing Lai.  I am a New Yorker, born and

         18  raised in the City.  I came here today as a

         19  representative of a small community in the Borough

         20  of Queens, a neighborhood of 64 single- family homes

         21  whose owners have come together to form the Kew

         22  Forest Neighborhood Association.  I serve as Vice

         23  President of the Association.

         24                 I come here today in representation

         25  of my neighborhood to speak in support of Intro. 15,
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          2  the Deed Restrictions Bill.  Why is this bill so

          3  important for communities like ours?  I will tell

          4  you why.

          5                 We live in a family, friendly,

          6  neighborhood where homes still have gardens and

          7  where the population density is not yet high.  The

          8  area where our homes stand was farmland in the

          9  1920s.  The developer of our homes wanted the area

         10  to remain a good place in which to raise families.

         11  He therefore included a restrictive covenants in the

         12  deeds of our property stipulating that only single-

         13  family homes could be built on each lot.  My wife

         14  and I moved into this neighborhood in 1992, we

         15  invested money and sweat equity into our home to

         16  turn it into our dream home.

         17                 Both of my children were born in this

         18  house.  This was our first home and probably our

         19  last.  This is where we planted our roots to stay.

         20  Our community remained almost unchanged until the

         21  1990s when the development boom in the saving New

         22  York made it relatively big lots in our area, prime

         23  targets for developers wishing to make easy money.

         24  Thus, in May 1999 we woke up one day to find out

         25  that one of the homes in the midst of our
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          2  neighborhood was being demolished to make way for a

          3  six story, 15- unit apartment complex with two

          4  medical facilities with underground parking garage.

          5                 In our small neighborhood such a

          6  structure would have spelt the end of quality of our

          7  life, reducing open space, restricting views, and

          8  bringing congestion.  When we tried to make a case

          9  against the developer, we found that City rules did

         10  not help.  Our area happened to be rezoned in 1960s

         11  to accommodate multi- family dwellings.  But then we

         12  discovered that restrictive covenants in our deeds,

         13  and we began to understand its power.  We could

         14  fight the developer on the basis of the covenant,

         15  but we had to go to court and engage in a costly

         16  procedure to make our rights as homeowners stand.

         17                 Members of Council, in order to

         18  defend the viability of our neighborhood, our whole

         19  community came together to support action against

         20  the developer.  But it was a costly and time

         21  consuming undertaking.  My wife and I together with

         22  other committed members of the Kew Forest

         23  Neighborhood Association developed the equivalent of

         24  a full person year of work to research and document

         25  our case.  We had become experts in the history of
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          2  Urban Planning in Queens, the use of old records,

          3  the meaning of Building Codes and Zoning Ordinances.

          4    We had to engage a lawyer and spend about $170,000

          5  in legal fees to have our rights respected.  We soon

          6  realized that not all neighborhoods had either the

          7  economic capacity or the tenacity to see a process

          8  like this through.

          9                 In consequence, deed restrictions set

         10  up to maintain the attractiveness of family

         11  neighborhoods and to protect the quality of life

         12  were being ignored and destroyed everywhere.

         13                 This is where Intro. 15, the Deed

         14  Restriction bill would make a major difference.  It

         15  would permit homeowners or homeowner associations

         16  wishing to protect the quality of life through

         17  registered deeds having restrictive covenants with

         18  the Department of Buildings, and make the Department

         19  responsible for ensuring that building permits do

         20  not violate the restrictive covenants of these

         21  deeds.

         22                 Passage of Bill 15 would turn the

         23  tables so the homeowner would no longer stand alone

         24  in one corner faced by developers, and the

         25  Department of Buildings on the other. Authority
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          2  would now be on the side of the homeowners and could

          3  not be used as allies by developers with deep

          4  pockets.  Knowing how difficult and sometime

          5  discouraging it is to convince authorities that

          6  homeowners have rights that deserve to be

          7  safeguarded, we applaud this effort to redress the

          8  balance between individual homeowners and

          9  developers, and very much hope that experience of

         10  the community, such as ours, who would have remained

         11  untouched if Bill 15 had existed 10 years ago, may

         12  convince you of all the righteousness and necessity

         13  of supporting Bill 15.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         16                 MR. LANG:  My name is Frank Lang.  I

         17  am a member of the Kew Forest Neighborhood

         18  Association, and a resident in Forest Hills.

         19                 My wife and I bought our house in

         20  2000, and we were living on a block of single-

         21  family homes.  The house next to us was sold

         22  however, and it was purchased by a doctor, who

         23  opened up a medical facility for rehabilitative

         24  medicine.  So now our house, which was adjacent to

         25  another single- family home is now adjacent to a
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          2  commercial operation.  A commercial operation where

          3  10 cars at one time get all parked in the drive.

          4  The neighborhood, there are people coming back and

          5  forth.  The backyard is treated as a commercial

          6  operation, so it is not a house where people care

          7  for it or live there.  People are there only during

          8  the day.

          9                 And I think that, you know, the

         10  zoning code, which allowed this community facility

         11  to operate there did not require anybody to live in

         12  the building, is really a cruel tool for maintaining

         13  the quality of our neighborhoods.

         14                 The restrictive covenant that we went

         15  to court to try to enforced, you know our

         16  association was exhausted fighting the previous, the

         17  legal case.  And so we were not able to win

         18  successfully trying to defend ourselves against it.

         19                 If this bill had gone forward, or had

         20  been in place, the doctor would have never purchased

         21  the home, because he would have known that he could

         22  not have opened up a medical facility there.  A

         23  homeowner would have purchased it, and we would be

         24  living next to a homeowner.  That would have

         25  prevented their purchase, it would have prevented us
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          2  from spending time in litigation, and it would have

          3  prevented the bad impact in the neighborhood.

          4                 In addition, the title company, a lot

          5  of times people say that the homeowners don't

          6  understand this.  If there is a deed that is

          7  registered at the Building Department, the title

          8  company for sure, would make sure that when they

          9  produced the title for the home purchase it would be

         10  right there.  If the title company doesn't do that,

         11  then the title insurance would cover that homeowner

         12  in the purchase.  In this case, the title company

         13  missed it, we were in court, and yet again, not only

         14  did we have to go against the deep- pocketed medical

         15  facility, we had to go up against the deep pockets

         16  of a title company that was protecting their

         17  purchaser.

         18                 So in short, I think that this is a

         19  kind of thing that is the kind of fine tool that we

         20  need in the City to maintain the kind of quality

         21  neighborhoods that balance off and retain people to

         22  live here.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         25  Thank you, both.  Tina Chan, all right, Tina, you
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          2  are all by yourself.

          3                 MS. CHAN:  Thank you for allowing me

          4  to speak. Hi, my name is Tina Chan.  I volunteer my

          5  name with the Kew Forest Neighborhood Association to

          6  sue the lawsuit against the developer.  I figure I

          7  came to the United States with less than $22,000 in

          8  my pocket.  If I lose everything I have, in this

          9  lawsuit, then I have to start over again, it is okay

         10  with me.

         11                 Okay, my understanding from the City

         12  is that the Department of Buildings is concern is

         13  cost, and worried that the developer will sue them

         14  for not allowing them to build what they want and

         15  profit from them.  So I guess the bottom line is it

         16  is all about money.

         17                 Now our neighborhood had been

         18  preserved for over 80 years, and according to the

         19  realtors in our neighborhood is that the developers

         20  back off once they find out that we have restrictive

         21  covenants.  However, this developer, Joseph

         22  Liebermann, said to us before the lawsuit that he

         23  does not do this in his own neighborhood in Roslyn

         24  Height, Long Island, because he can't.  And that his

         25  town will not allow him.  Okay.
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          2                 However, he did it to us in Queens

          3  because the City allows him, and he can get away

          4  with it, and there is nothing we can do about it,

          5  because the law protects him versus us.  Okay.

          6                 Now in fact we went with the Borough

          7  Presidents and the Department of Buildings again and

          8  again, and they finally tell us that they could not

          9  help us, even if we changed our zoning, because they

         10  already issued the permit.  So at the end, we had no

         11  recourse but to sue, but, you know, to resort to the

         12  lawsuit.  The developer never thought that we could

         13  get our act together to sue him.  So his tactic was

         14  to drag it on as long as he can and make it as

         15  costly as he can for us.

         16                 So, I may not understand the

         17  complexity of Building Departments.  Okay, the City

         18  has Building Department, the City has government,

         19  the City has homeowners, and same as all the other

         20  towns in Long Island.  My question is that why is a

         21  small town in Long Island can protect their

         22  homeowners, and a large City like us can't?

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Madam Chair, if

         25  I might, first of all thank you for allowing a few
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          2  folks from Kew Forest, and also just commend them.

          3  It really, the amount of time and money they spent

          4  in protecting the community was unbelievable. And we

          5  didn't think they could do it, I will be honest with

          6  you. I was with Borough President Claire Schulman

          7  when this started; I think it was six, seven years

          8  ago.  And I remember sitting around the table with

          9  them, and Borough President Schulman, and saying,

         10  your only recourse is private right of action.  And

         11  the fact that they won was unbelievable to all of

         12  us, but is really through their own sweat equity.

         13  So thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  May I just make

         16  a comment?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  In sort of

         19  building on what Council Member Katz has said and

         20  the community.  When we were kids we would go in the

         21  pool and we would do the whirlpool.  And then at the

         22  height of the whirlpool we would try to go against

         23  the momentum.  And that is exactly what these folks

         24  are doing and what we are doing.

         25                 And one of the things that absolutely
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          2  infuriates me and frustrates me about the Buildings

          3  Department is that there is a status quo mentality.

          4  We are fighting to save communities and we are

          5  looking for any tool available to us.  And we expect

          6  them to do the same, and their response to, the

          7  community response to us is, well this is the

          8  precedent, this is the way we have done things, this

          9  is not our core mission.  Well, they have got to

         10  take the blinders off and see there is the real

         11  world that we live in.  And their real world is one

         12  day they have a neighbor, and the next day they have

         13  a 15- apartment, six- story apartment building.  And

         14  that is wrong.

         15                 And we are trying to find ways to

         16  help you, you are trying to find ways to help

         17  yourself, and the entity that we look to, to be

         18  like, you know, in a paternal way, they are like,

         19  well, this is not what we do.  And it is

         20  frustrating, and I commend you folks for fighting

         21  for your community.  We have that same sort of

         22  spirit in part on Staten Island.  And it is a shame

         23  that it has taken us on Staten Island so long to get

         24  to that point, because we had a beautiful community,

         25  that is still beautiful in many ways, but it is not
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          2  what it once was.  And it is very, very frustrating.

          3    So Kudos to all of you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  All right,

          5  we are going to switch gears again here.  Remember

          6  we have another bill that we have a hearing today,

          7  which is the Green Bill.  Only in this Committee do

          8  we do these kinds of things.

          9                 We have Alexander MacFarlane, are you

         10  somewhere? You know what, I am going to bring three

         11  of you up, because that is what I have is three,

         12  Nancy Anderson and Stephen Boese.  Also regarding

         13  this bill we have written testimony from David

         14  Hubbard, who is from Natural Resources Defense

         15  Council, and also Michael Deane, he is the Chair of

         16  US Green Building Council, Turner Construction

         17  Company.  And we are expecting other testimony to

         18  come in from, American Institute of Architects, Rick

         19  Bellows, I think that is it.

         20                 So whichever one of you wants to

         21  start first.  Go ahead.

         22                 MS. ANDERSON:  Good afternoon,

         23  Chairperson Provenzano and members of the City

         24  Council's Housing and Buildings Committee.  I am

         25  Nancy Anderson, Executive Director of the Sallan
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          2  Foundation.  Sallan's mission is to advance useful

          3  knowledge for a greener city, and its agenda is to

          4  make high performance building and sustainable

          5  energy system the new normal for New York.  Thank

          6  you for the opportunity to offer my support for the

          7  goals of Intro. 324- A.

          8                 I regret that I was unable to testify

          9  that Intro. 324- A at this Committee's hearings in

         10  September 2004, but Sallan did not open its doors

         11  until January of this year.  This bill ceases the

         12  opportunity to reduce our City's energy demands on a

         13  strained electric power system, and ease the burden

         14  of sharply escalating cost of oil and natural gas.

         15                 Intro. 324- A makes a contribution to

         16  healthy public schools.  Intro. 324- A reduces air

         17  pollution and the public health burden of dirty air.

         18    It helps the local economy to grow by stimulating

         19  markets for new construction designs, materials and

         20  methods.  New York City can become a value added

         21  model for the world and given its role as the center

         22  of media, New York City is uniquely situated to

         23  communicate the good news.

         24                 By mandating that new construction in

         25  certain capital financed renovations of City- owned
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          2  and City- funded buildings meet LEED Silver or meet

          3  equivalent standards will move up the learning curve

          4  of how to build and operate sustainable high-

          5  performance buildings.  Our success will show that

          6  it can be done, and that we can quickly learn to do

          7  it even better.

          8                 This work will be carried out with

          9  ever increasing efficiencies of time and cost as new

         10  methods and materials come onto the market.  Intro.

         11  324- A also will support emerging businesses and new

         12  jobs that can grow into robust, local, high

         13  performance material supply chains.

         14                 Now I want to urge the Council to

         15  take the next necessary step in making New York City

         16  the center of high performance urban development,

         17  while helping to meet the pressing need for more

         18  affordable housing.  The Council should establish a

         19  public policy that requires the adoption of high-

         20  performance building standards for residential

         21  properties owned or rehabilitated by the City.

         22                 Turning to the impact of public

         23  policy on the track and the resources of the private

         24  housing market, the recent rezoning in Williamsburg

         25  has been justly applauded because it can generate
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          2  thousands of affordable units of housing by linking

          3  certain zoning bonuses to the development of

          4  affordable housing. But there is no policy in place

          5  for these units to meet LEED equivalent standards.

          6  The Council should act now to implement a policy of

          7  LEED type of requirements for affordable housing

          8  initiatives that are linked to future rezoning

          9  actions, or to private development that benefit from

         10  other types of public support or tax breaks.

         11                 I believe there is money available,

         12  and their budgets will not be busted, if we build

         13  green residential housing.  The time is now, and

         14  thank you for the chance to testify.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         16                 MR. BOESE:  I Stephen Boese, Healthy

         17  Schools Network.  Thank you.  This past fall I

         18  provided full testimony to the Committee regarding

         19  Intro. 324- A, I would like to make the following

         20  comments today.  Healthy and high- performance

         21  school design promotes healthy children, improves

         22  academic achievement, improves teacher and school

         23  staff satisfaction, saves money for schools.  What

         24  you are doing here, we very much support, and we

         25  believe that there is no good reason not to do it.
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          2  We congratulate you on that.

          3                 With that, I will focus on the

          4  concerns that we have about the legislation as

          5  written.

          6                 First, is the effective date of

          7  January 1, 2007, and further the provision that the

          8  law will not apply to capital projects that have

          9  received capital dollars from the City treasury

         10  before January 1, 2007.  The problem with this is

         11  that the School Construction Authority is now in the

         12  second year of a major 13 billion dollar, five- year

         13  capital construction plan.  By extending the

         14  effective date forward to January 1, 2007 and

         15  stipulating that these provisions only apply to

         16  those projects receiving funds after that date,

         17  means that the very important benefits of this new

         18  law for children and schools, will be in a very real

         19  way lost for a generation of New York City school

         20  children.

         21                 If I am not clear, it is because we

         22  have a five year plan, this will take effect in the

         23  fourth year of the five year plan.  The horses will

         24  be out the barn door, and the important benefits of

         25  this legislation would not apply to the bulk of the
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          2  construction now being undertaken by the School

          3  Construction Authority.

          4                 It is essential that the City Council

          5  stipulate that funds for supporting the SCA five-

          6  plan be provided only in accordance with the SCA

          7  making real and substantial progress toward adapting

          8  green school design in all its current, as well as

          9  future construction projects.  This requirement

         10  should apply as well for current City funds

         11  supporting the five- year plan, and the City Council

         12  should so stipulate in a periodic approval of the

         13  five- year plan.

         14                 This law, this standard should also

         15  apply to any and all new capital funds that may be

         16  appropriated as part of the long awaited resolution

         17  to the CFE litigation, so that capital money coming

         18  in for CFE should be linked to the standards of the

         19  new requirements that will be required by 324.

         20                 We also want to note, I looked at the

         21  new revision of the bill this morning, there seems

         22  to be a lower standard of achievement for schools

         23  for meeting a standard.  Other buildings are LEED

         24  Silver, schools have to receive simple LEED

         25  certification.  There is also a 20 percent, they
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          2  take out 20 percent of the buildings so that they

          3  don't have to meet LEED standard.  The very

          4  important part is that there is an important benefit

          5  here for children.  We are talking about a City with

          6  an asthma epidemic with serious problems resulting

          7  from the indoors environments in schools.  Any

          8  reduction in the standard that schools have to meet

          9  should not reduce the public health benefit. We need

         10  to protect indoor air quality for students in these

         11  schools.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         13                 MR. MACFARLANE:  Hi, Madam Chair.  My

         14  name is Alexander MacFarlane from Community

         15  Environmental Center. Community Environmental Center

         16  has performed extensive literature research on the

         17  issue of Green Affordable Housing.  We have also

         18  provided energy and environmental consulting for

         19  many affordable housing designs in New York City

         20  including LEED projects.  It is our conclusion that

         21  there is room for improvement in residential new

         22  construction and rehab where environmental

         23  performance is concerned.

         24                 We have found that LEED Silver

         25  standards can and should be achieved cost-
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          2  effectively by all housing and rehab in the City.

          3  We recommend that housing is either included in

          4  Intro. 324, or that a new bill is generated

          5  specifically for LEED Silver housing.

          6                 We also recommend that the City and

          7  other relevant agencies work with the United States

          8  Green Buildings Council to determine a method of

          9  streamline certification or approval.

         10                 Green Buildings are designed and

         11  constructed to reduce environmental impacts greatly

         12  and improve the quality of life for occupants.

         13  These goals are achieved through maximizing energy

         14  efficiency, enhancing indoors air quality,

         15  conserving materials and resources through the reuse

         16  and recycling, water conserving, and building

         17  commissioning.  Affordable housing built to LEED

         18  standards will be less expensive to operate and

         19  healthier for low- income tenants and building

         20  owners, while easing the burden on strained public

         21  infrastructure and the environment.

         22                 We have found that it is feasible to

         23  build to LEED Silver level in affordable housing in

         24  New York at a cost premium of only three dollars and

         25  seven cents to six dollars and seventy cents per
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          2  square foot, or two and one- half to seven percent

          3  increment in construction costs.  This incremental

          4  investment yields sufficient economic benefit in

          5  terms of energy, water, health, and resources, to

          6  pay for itself nearly two and one- half times over

          7  in a 20- year period.  Therefore, we conclude that

          8  construction for LEED Silver standards is a wise

          9  investment for the City to provide environmentally

         10  sustainable and healthy housing.

         11                 The attached Executive Summary and

         12  Introduction presents analysis for construction of

         13  an estimated 34,000 units. Those built under New VIP

         14  from 2006- 2008, as constructed to the LEED Silver

         15  standards, along with energy, water, health, and

         16  infrastructure benefits.  This is an excerpt from

         17  our soon- to- be released publication entitled,

         18   "Affordable Green In NYC," which will be available

         19  on our web site at www.cecenter.org within the next

         20  two months.

         21                 Thank you very much for this

         22  opportunity to provide testimony.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         24  all very much. We have one person left to testify on

         25  James Oddo's bill, again, it is number 513.  Just
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          2  keep doing this to make sure you are all paying

          3  attention.  James Scarangella, when you obviously

          4  live near Robert Calandra (phonetic).

          5                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  In the Pelham Bay

          6  Section, yes, Ma'am.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Pelham Bay,

          8  not Throgs Neck?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  You are not

         10  going to hold that against him now?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Well not

         12  yet, I have to see what he is going to say first.

         13                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  Good afternoon,

         14  Chairwoman Provenzano and members of the Housing and

         15  Buildings Committee. My name is James Scarangella,

         16  and thank you for this opportunity to testify in

         17  support of Intro. 513, which would license

         18  residential contractors.

         19                 Had this legislation been enacted a

         20  year ago, it would have prevented a nightmares

         21  situation I am still trying to recover from today.

         22  Approximately a year ago, I contracted a Jay Ordean,

         23  a DBR Ordean Contracting Company with a specific New

         24  York City tracking number, 27824 on April 6th to

         25  build four homes for my family.  I was told by him
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          2  that he had been in business for the past 25 years,

          3  and that he touted that he had a New York City

          4  tracking number.  I later found out that not only

          5  was this not true, but for the bulk of this time, he

          6  has spent that time in prison for heroin trafficking

          7  and weapons charges.  And his name wasn't even Jay

          8  Ordean, it was Emying here today is because we go`

          9  an took a great deal of money, got to the 40 percent

         10  mark of construction and then proceeded to complete

         11  his home in Georgia, at 262 Yacht Club Road in

         12  Hartwell, Georgia. Mr. Ordean did this by depositing

         13  monies into his daughter's account, Nicole Ordean,

         14  who lives in Mount Vernon, New York, who is part of

         15  Ordean Contracting Company, and has a separate

         16  tracking number, which I don't know.  And then

         17  filtered this money into his subproject in Georgia.

         18                 Mr. Ordean has purposefully misled me

         19  from the beginning and on numerous occasions.  Mr.

         20  Emmanuel Jay Ordean and his daughter, Nicole Ordean

         21  have taken over $125,000 direct as evidenced by

         22  canceled checks and funding from the bank draws.  In

         23  addition to monies taken, Mr. Ordean's poor

         24  workmanship, I have a letter from the architect

         25  which enumerates all the problems with the site has
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          2  cost me an additional $200,000 in repair costs to

          3  bring all violations into compliance.

          4                 On March 15th I learned that Mr.

          5  Ordean has been fraudulently collecting disability

          6  and has been working physically on my project and

          7  numerous others on 819 Hollywood, 1336 Gillespie,

          8  that is his current project, and several others. I

          9  also learned that he owed his current landlord, a

         10  Mr. Tony Carnada and three other landlords preceding

         11  him over eight months rent and has been embroiled in

         12  an eviction proceeding, which he is now evicted from

         13  that property.

         14                 On March 16th 2005, my family and I

         15  had had enough, and I had terminated Mr. Ordean, DBR

         16  Ordean Contracting Company for numerous breeches of

         17  contract.  In the end, Mr. Ordean placed four liens

         18  upon my properties totaling over $720,000 after

         19  signing both receipt logs and original contract, on

         20  original contracts and waivers of liens.  He did not

         21  pay his subcontractors, who to date, have also

         22  placed additional liens on my properties, totaling

         23  another $32,000, and we expect that to rise.

         24                 This will now cost me an additional

         25  twenty to forty thousand in legal fees just to clean
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          2  them up.  I did everything that was available to me

          3  at the time.  I referred the case to Consumer

          4  Affairs only to be told that since he does not have

          5  an HIC number that they can do nothing.  I referred

          6  this case to DOB and specifically met with Marshal

          7  Cameron at the local Community Board meeting and was

          8  told that internal DOB investigation was ongoing,

          9  but nothing has occurred.  I referred this case to

         10  the Bronx DA's Office and met with Wendy Thomas and

         11  ADA and Chief of Detectives, Vincent Canterella, and

         12  was told that an investigation may or may not occur,

         13  and I am not confident about it, that it will occur.

         14                 This situation has brought my family

         15  close to financial bankruptcy and has forced me to

         16  consolidate in order to complete the project and pay

         17  all bills.  I have worked my entire life to have an

         18  opportunity to embark on this venture, aside from

         19  building homes for myself and my family, there was a

         20  chance that if all went well that this endeavor

         21  could have changed the course of my life.

         22  Unfortunately, it has changed it for the worse.

         23                 I did all I could to ensure I had a

         24  good contractor, this is a situation where I needed

         25  the government's help, I should have been able to
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          2  rely on the City to make sure that this builder was

          3  competent and trustworthy.  I commend Council Member

          4  Oddo for proposing this legislation and I urge the

          5  Committee to pass it as soon as possible so that

          6  other City residents can be spared the nightmare I

          7  have endured.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I am going

         10  to venture a guess that you never brought this to

         11  the attention of your local Councilperson.

         12                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  Not to my local

         13  Councilperson, I have not.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  That is

         15  interesting.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  In whose

         17  district?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  In my

         19  district.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Oh.

         21                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  I tried to pursue

         22  all the avenues that were available.  I was told

         23  that Consumer Affairs was the start point, I started

         24  there.  And then upon obtaining Counsel, we tried to

         25  get the DA's Office involved.  Obviously, I made a
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          2  mistake, and should have come to you first, and

          3  earlier. I wish I had, quite honestly.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I wish you

          5  had too. Sure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Jim, you made

          7  reference to the fact that he is doing business

          8  today.

          9                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  That is correct,

         10  1336 Gillespie Avenue.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  How he can be

         12  able to get a permit from the Department of

         13  Buildings is the point here.  He should be

         14  prohibited from pulling any sorts of permits.  The

         15  fact that you went to them and told them about this

         16  situation, should have been pause, and legally I am

         17  not sure if they can prevent it. But this guy is

         18  pulling permits, could do this tomorrow, and that is

         19  the whole point of this.

         20                 MR. SCARANGELLA: And the tracking

         21  number does nothing other than ensure that his

         22  insurance is current.  His insurance is tied to an

         23  address, which he was evicted from a while ago, and

         24  I have a copy of the document, it is amazing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And the
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          2  other point, though, is that if I had been aware of

          3  this, I mean, you know we are involved with

          4  contractors.  You said you went to the Community

          5  Board.

          6                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  I did.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Even the

          8  Community Board should have let me know.  I mean,

          9  because often people come to the office and I like

         10  to know who the good guys and who the bad guys are

         11  out there.  And obviously this is a very bad guy.

         12                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  This is a bad guy.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  What would you

         14  have been able to do, I mean?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Well I could

         16  have interceded with the Department of Buildings.  I

         17  have a relationship with Marshal.  And again, he is

         18  a bad contractor.  I mean, you say he is still

         19  building, I mean, - -

         20                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  Right now.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: -- Gillespie

         22  and whatever.

         23                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  And LaSalle.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And LaSalle.

         25                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  Right on the
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          2  corner.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And how does

          4  a guy like this, you know, again, you know we are

          5  talking about legislation, but even after the record

          6  that this gentleman has, you know, just talking to

          7  Marshal, should lead them right to this guy and shut

          8  him down.

          9                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  I felt very

         10  confident after I spoke to Mr. Cammata.  I thought

         11  something would occur, but that was over a month

         12  ago, and nothing has occurred since.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I don't think

         14  it is too late- -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  No it is not

         16  too late.  I would like to know where this guy is

         17  building now.

         18                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So, if you

         20  call my office, talk to Tom, he is my Chief of Staff

         21  and set something up, so you come up and give me a

         22  list.  I mean, you know, we can't let this guy go on

         23  and on and on.

         24                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  Sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Can you work on
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          2  Staten Island after that?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Absolutely.

          4  You know part of my heart is in Staten Island.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  You are a hill

          6  topper.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  That is

          8  right.

          9                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  Thank you.  I

         10  appreciate the opportunity.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You know

         12  where I am, I am in Pelham Bay too.  Okay.

         13                 MR. SCARANGELLA:  I will be there

         14  tomorrow morning.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Let's see, I

         16  have to read something.  Proposed Intro. No. 324- A

         17  incorporates Green Building concepts that are

         18  supported by the US Green Building Council, the

         19  NRDC, which is the National (sic) Resources Defense

         20  Council, the American Institute of Architects New

         21  York Chapter, again, we have Rick here, and the

         22  Mayoral Administration.  And all of the items that

         23  we had a hearing on today, are laid over.

         24                 And I thank all of you.  Sure Rick.

         25                 RICK:  The reason we are not
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          2  testifying here today is because we got the revised

          3  bill too late today, given the West Chelsea hearing

          4    - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, Oh,

          6  okay.

          7                 RICK:  But we would like to be able

          8  to submit written testimony, but I haven't had a

          9  chance to do that yesterday to look at the changes

         10  to the new bill.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, this

         12  is a little unorthodox, but it is in there, and it

         13  is fine, absolutely. Okay.  Well you are here, but

         14  you are not here.  You are welcome. Oh, okay.  I

         15  thank you, I thank all of you for the few folks that

         16  are still remaining.  And this hearing is adjourned.

         17  And right on time, it is a good thing to set a goal.

         18                 (Hearing adjourned at 4:00 p.m.)

         19                 (The following testimony was read

         20  into the record.)

         21

         22  Testimony of:

         23  Michael Deane

         24  Chair, US Green Building Council, New York Chapter

         25  Turner Construction Company
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          2                 Thank you for the opportunity on the

          3  City Council's proposed action to amend the New York

          4  City Charter in relation to green building standards

          5  for certain capital projects.  WE, the Board of

          6  Directors of the US Green Building Council, New York

          7  Chapter, enthusiastically support the bill and

          8  believe it is a necessary first step toward creating

          9  a healthy and sustainable built environment in New

         10  York City.

         11                 This statement is offered on behalf

         12  of the New York Chapter of the US Green Building

         13  Council.  The US Green Building Council is an

         14  organization of over 6,000 member companies and

         15  organizations representing the Nation's premier

         16  members of the development community, architects,

         17  engineers, construction firms, and non- governmental

         18  organizations, all dedicated to transforming the

         19  built environment.

         20                 The US Green Building Council is

         21  unique in the building industry, working as a

         22  consensus organization with transparent, open, and

         23  balanced processes to create a flexible building

         24  rating tool to enable the market to achieve and

         25  deliver buildings that have increased value,
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          2  productivity and occupant satisfaction, along with

          3  lower operating costs and better building

          4  performance.

          5                 This rating tool, known as Leadership

          6  in Energy and Environmental Design, (LEED) is a

          7  flexible system, which currently has applications

          8  for both new construction and existing buildings.

          9  It is also applicable to commercial interiors.  LEED

         10  is being developed for core and shell construction,

         11  neighborhoods and homes.  Applications guides for

         12  schools, hospitals and labs are also available.

         13                 Applying this rating system brings

         14  enormous benefits.  When using a team experience

         15  with the LEED products (and there are over 20,000

         16  LEED Accredited Professionals nationwide and over

         17  800 in New York City) the integrated design process,

         18  construction and commissioning of a building becomes

         19  transformative, bringing enormous economic and

         20  environmental benefits.

         21                 Cities and states all over the

         22  country have adopted this system.  From Chicago to

         23  Boston to Houston, from San Francisco to San Joseph

         24  to Portland, from Michigan to California, building

         25  to the LEED standard is required when local, and
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          2  state money is involved.  In Washington State

          3  schools as well as state buildings will now be LEED

          4  Certified.  Many Federal agencies are also using

          5  this tool.

          6                 We believe, and experience shows,

          7  that the LEED rating system is a versatile tool that

          8  can effectively define and quantify those elements

          9  of design and construction that identify a building

         10  as sustainable.  Our research, and real world

         11  examples such as the Solaire in Battery Park City,

         12  which achieved a high LEED Gold rating, and One

         13  Bryant Park and the Queens Botanical Garden

         14  Administration Building, two very different

         15  buildings that are both pursuing LEED Platinum

         16  ratings, show that LEED is a viable metric in New

         17  York City for various diverse building types, and

         18  that a separate rating tool for New York is not

         19  required.

         20                 Moreover, using LEED will enable New

         21  York City to benchmark its buildings against those

         22  in the rest of the country using the common language

         23  of LEED without having to translate or interpret a

         24  separate system.

         25                 While we strongly support this
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          2  measure as a big step in the right direction for the

          3  City and its citizens, we are concerned that the

          4  provision to allow the Mayor to write separate

          5  guidelines rather than use LEED Silver as the

          6  mandated governing standard and the requirement that

          7  only 50 percent of projects go through the formal

          8  certification process will dilute the effectiveness

          9  of the bill.  WE believe that all projects should be

         10  required to achieve a minimum rating of LEED Silver

         11  and that all projects should be formally certified.

         12                 New York City is the unofficial

         13  capital of the world and a leader in countless

         14  areas.  We, the board of directors of USGBC- NY,

         15  applaud your initiative to bring our City into line

         16  with other leading metropolitan areas and strongly

         17  urge the Council to adopt a bill that mandates

         18  certification of all City funded capital

         19  construction at the LEED Silver level.

         20  Notwithstanding our preference for the earlier

         21  version of this bill, we stand ready to work with

         22  the City Council as you develop more experience and

         23  comfort with this enormously successful green

         24  building- rating tool.

         25                 We than you again for this
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          2  opportunity to comment and for your commitment to

          3  green building.

          4                 Please note for the record the

          5  following points:

          6                 The incremental cost to build green,

          7  especially at the certified and silver levels is

          8  zero to minimal (see studies by Capital E for the

          9  State of California and Davis Langdon.)

         10                 The benefits associated with green

         11  building and LEED dramatically outweighed any

         12  minimal increase in first costs (see above)

         13  particularly with respect to energy savings and

         14  improved health and productivity of building

         15  occupants.

         16                 Based upon our internal analysis, the

         17  relative degree of difficulty in implementing LEED

         18  in a dense urban area is not substantively different

         19  from that of archiving the same in suburban or rural

         20  areas.

         21                 As a consequence of the above, the

         22  benefits of LEED NC, EBV and Circulation are

         23  increasingly being recognized in the marketplace.

         24                 Many of these benefits would be lost

         25  if the City does not require LEED certification
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          2  since the certification process drives both the

          3  design process and assures that the actual

          4  construction meets the design intent.

          5                 Many of these benefits might also be

          6  lost if the City chooses to implement its own green

          7  building rating system.

          8                 The cost to implement such a system

          9  would be substantial since the City would have to

         10  design, implement and administer its own green

         11  building program, services which are otherwise

         12  provided at relatively low cost by the USGBC.

         13                 Given the above, we recommend that

         14  the 50 percent certification LEED requirement and

         15  the option of developing a City green building

         16  system by eliminated from the proposed bill.

         17

         18  Testimony of:

         19  David Hubbard

         20  New York Council

         21  Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc.

         22                 Good afternoon.  My name is David

         23  Hubbard and I am testifying on behalf of the New

         24  York Council, a volunteer affiliated of the Natural

         25  Resources Defense Council, Inc. (NRDC). NRDC is a
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          2  national environmental advocacy organization with

          3  over one million members and activists, including

          4  over 27,000 in New York City.  The New York Council

          5  is a group of young professionals who live and work

          6  in New York City and the region and have a strong

          7  interest in improving public health and the

          8  environment in New York City and in building a

          9  sustainable economy.

         10                 NRDC's New York Council strongly

         11  supports Intro. 324- A, the "green buildings" bill.

         12  This bill would require that many types of City-

         13  owned and funded buildings be energy efficient and

         14  high performance buildings, reducing energy costs

         15  and improving the health and quality of life of

         16  building inhabitants.  By reducing overall energy

         17  demand through green building techniques, New York

         18  City will reduce our dependence on foreign fossil

         19  fuel and allow new power plants to displace power

         20  from less efficient and more polluting existing

         21  plants.  New York City will also save money on its

         22  energy bills, bring down wholesale electricity

         23  prices for all New Yorkers, and provide healthier

         24  environments for those who work and/or spend time in

         25  City buildings.
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          2                 At the heart of Introduced. 324- A is

          3  the requirement that City capital projects with an

          4  estimated construction cost of two million dollars

          5  or more involving (I) the construction of any new

          6  building; (ii) any addition to any existing

          7  building, or (iii) the substantial reconstruction of

          8  any existing building must meet green building

          9  standards no less stringent than the LEED "silver"

         10  green building standard.  It is appropriate and

         11  beneficial for the City to require these buildings

         12  to meet green building standards and to use the LEED

         13   "silver" standards as a key point of reference.

         14                 Modern architects and engineers have

         15  established that we can reduce the health and

         16  environmental impacts of buildings by designing

         17   "high- performance buildings" or "green buildings."

         18    The United States Green Building Council, the

         19  nation's foremost coalition of real estate and

         20  environmental organizations working to promote green

         21  buildings, and of which NRDC is a founder, has

         22  developed a green building rating system known as

         23  LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental

         24  Design). Buildings receive LEED certification if

         25  efficiency, energy and atmosphere, materials and
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          2  resources and indoors environmental quality.  The

          3  LEED rating system has been a huge success and has

          4  spurred on thousands of principles and receives LEED

          5  certification.  In New York City, the Solaire

          6  building at Battery Park City is a high- profile

          7  LEED- certified building, and many others are in the

          8  works, including the new Bank of America building,

          9  which is shooting for a LEED platinum rating, the

         10  highest available rating.

         11                 Other cities across the country,

         12  including Atlanta, Austin, Boston, Boulder, Chicago,

         13  Dallas, Los Angeles, Portland, San Diego, San

         14  Francisco, San Joseph, and Seattle, have adopted

         15  LEED or have otherwise required that city- owned

         16  buildings be built according to green building

         17  criteria.  In New York City, the Battery Park City

         18  Authority has begun utilizing green building

         19  guidelines modeled on LEED for all commercial and

         20  residential building construction in Battery Park

         21  City. Likewise, many states, such as California,

         22  Connecticut, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Jersey,

         23  New York, Pennsylvania, and Rhode Island, have begun

         24  utilizing LEED for state- owned buildings.  The

         25  State of New York provides tax credits for buildings
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          2  that meet defined green building criteria and, under

          3  Executive Order 111; state agencies are directed to

          4  reduce energy use and carbon dioxide emissions and

          5  to utilize green building principles.

          6                 I would also like to emphasize two

          7  other important aspects of Intro. 324- A and urge

          8  the Committee and the New York City Council to

          9  ensure that these provisions are enacted.

         10                 First, it is crucial to ensure that

         11  Intro. 324- A applies to New York City schools, as

         12  it currently does.  New York City's children are a

         13  precious resource.  Sadly, however, the poor

         14  physical conditions of New York City schools are

         15  well documented, and too many of New York City's

         16  nearly one million school children attend schools

         17  with unhealthy conditions ranging from pesticide

         18  exposure to mold to lack of adequate ventilation.

         19  This affects both the health and the ability to

         20  learn for our children.  Green building techniques

         21  help to make schools more productive, safe and

         22  healthy for school children and teachers.

         23  Communities across the United States are beginning

         24  to design and build green schools with built

         25  environments that improve learning, promote good
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          2  health, are easier to maintain and cost less to

          3  operate than traditional school facilities.  Clean

          4  air, non- toxic building materials, day lighting,

          5  and energy efficiency techniques are incorporated

          6  from the start into the design and construction of a

          7  school.  New York City needs to become a part of

          8  this new trend.  Many schools will be built in New

          9  York City in coming decade and Intro. 324- A

         10  correctly requires that these schools must meet

         11  green building standards.  Our children deserve no

         12  less.

         13                 Second, Intro. 324- A requires that

         14  any City capital project with an estimated

         15  construction cost of twelve million dollars or more

         16  involving (1) the construction of any new building,

         17  (2) any addition to any existing building, or (3)

         18  the substantial reconstruction of any existing

         19  building shall be designed and constructed to reduce

         20  energy cost by a minimum of thirty percent as

         21  determined by the LEED energy methodology or the New

         22  York State Energy Conservation Code, whichever is

         23  more stringent.  This requirement ensures that these

         24  larger buildings must meet stringent but cost-

         25  effective energy efficiency requirements.  While the
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          2  LEED rating system appropriately provides some

          3  flexibility on green attributes, in New York City,

          4  where both reliability of the electric grid and poor

          5  air quality are key concerns, it is important to

          6  include extra measures such as this to ensure that

          7  achievable energy efficiency measures are

          8  implemented in larger City buildings.

          9                 Finally, I would like to thank

         10  Speaker Miller and the co- sponsors of Introduced.

         11  324- A, as well as this Committee, for having the

         12  foresight to bring the many benefits of green

         13  building to City buildings.  I strongly urge that

         14  the City Council adopt this bill promptly.  Thank

         15  you for your consideration.

         16

         17  Testimony of:

         18  Danielle Sandow

         19  President

         20  Middle 13th Street Block Association

         21  Friends of 13th Street, Inc.

         22                 Dear Council Member Avella,

         23                 We are in support of all legislation

         24  that protects the citizens of New York City form the

         25  excessive, ongoing incursions of over building in
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          2  established neighborhoods.

          3                 These incursions are destabilizing

          4  many communities and are creating an atmosphere of

          5  anxiety and fear.

          6                 We further believe that all

          7  individuals, whether Home Owners or Civic

          8  Associations should have the legal means to protect

          9  the integrity of their local areas, thereby

         10  maintaining the very meaning of "Community."

         11                 Recent excesses in over building,

         12  i.e., height, density, not only strain City

         13  services, but add great numbers of individuals who

         14  have little or no interest in the existing

         15  communities.

         16                 We support your efforts on behalf of

         17  the Citizens of New York City.  Thank you.

         18                 Sincerely,

         19                 Danielle Sandow

         20                 President

         21                 Middle 13th Street Block Association

         22

         23  Testimony of:

         24  Nancy Cataldi

         25  President
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          2  Richmond Hill Historical Society

          3                 The Richmond Hill Historical Society

          4  endorses and supports a Local Law to amend the

          5  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

          6  relation to the filing of deeds containing

          7  restrictive covenants.  For too long, deed

          8  restrictions have been hidden and ignored, while our

          9  neighborhoods suffer with the loss of beautiful and

         10  historic homes to make way for more crowded, over

         11  built and unattractive housing.

         12                 These restrictions were put in for a

         13  purpose. Many of our communities were built with

         14  plans in mind, such as Richmond Hill and Kew

         15  Gardens, and it clearly states "for run of the land"

         16  that are placed to preserve the sense of place for

         17  what it was designed.

         18                 Our homeowners have watched

         19  fruitlessly as homes were torn down because they

         20  could not afford the immense legal fees to fight for

         21  deed restrictions.  It is about time that taxpayers

         22  can speak about how they want to live, and not the

         23  other way around.

         24                 We totally support Tony Avella's Bill

         25  and applaud his fight with Queens to preserve our
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          2  communities.  Thank you.

          3

          4  Testimony of:

          5  Arthur J. Viviani

          6  President

          7  Broadway- Flushing Homeowners Association, Inc.

          8                 Broadway- Flushing Homeowners

          9  Association strongly supports Intro. 15, "Deed

         10  Restrictions" Bill.  It is a logical follow- up of

         11  the cesarean section we won in Supreme Court on

         12  April 25, 1988.  Judge Edwin Kossoff's decision is

         13  now the law:" A zoning ordinance will neither

         14  nullify nor supersede a valid restriction on the use

         15  of real property.  Where restrictive covenants an a

         16  zoning ordinance are in conflict, the more

         17  restrictive of the two prevail."

         18                 Intro. 15, reasonably, requires

         19  parties to a covenant to register it with the

         20  Department of Buildings (DOB), if they want the DOB

         21  to refuse permits to applicants if those permits, if

         22  granted, would violate the terms of the covenant.

         23                 Our Association has already

         24  demonstrated that our rights are protected by law.

         25  We need this bill to serve the public good,
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          2  protecting both the applicant for the permit and the

          3  parties of the covenant.

          4                 We urge both the Committee's approval

          5  and the City Council's prompt passing of Intro. 15.

          6

          7  Testimony of:

          8  Henry Euler

          9                 My name is Henry Euler.  I am a

         10  lifelong resident of Bayside and member of Community

         11  Board 11, Queens.  I also am a member of New

         12  Property Civic Association of Bayside, Auburndale

         13  Improvement Association, Bayside Civic Database, the

         14  Queens Preservation Council and the Bayside

         15  Historical Society.

         16                 I am in favor of Intro. 15 "Deed

         17  Restrictions" Bill proposed by my Councilman, Tony

         18  Avella and have been lobbying for its passage for

         19  some time.  Last year, when I was working with a

         20  group of concerned residents to curb over

         21  development in our area, we had mailed out a letter

         22  to members of various civic and cultural

         23  associations.  We requested that they sign a letter

         24  to Mayor Bloomberg calling for the enactment of

         25  various pieces of legislation to help preserve our
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          2  neighborhoods. Included in that list of legislation

          3  was the deed restrictions bill.  We receive back

          4  approximately 250- signed letters to forward to the

          5  Mayor in support of passage of the legislation.

          6  Copies were sent to various elected officials and

          7  community organizations.

          8                 I believe that those residents who

          9  wish to would be able to declare their desires with

         10  regard to the future of their property with the

         11  passage of this deed restrictions bill. The deed

         12  restrictions would be registered with the Department

         13  of Buildings and be subjective to enforcement by DOB

         14  when the need arises.

         15                 Civic groups could also file deed

         16  restrictions under Intro. 15, from my understanding.

         17    This is very important. At the last meeting of

         18  Community Board 11, a zoning change was requested by

         19  an owner of a property wishing to develop that

         20  property.  The local civic association drew up a

         21  deed restriction document for the owner to sign to

         22  ensure that the followed certain procedures so he

         23  would not cause problems for his adjacent neighbors.

         24    With the passage of the deed restrictions bill,

         25  the legal and financial responsibility to enforce
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          2  this covenant would shift form the civic association

          3  to the DOB.  The civic association is made up of

          4  volunteers and the organization has limited funds.

          5  Any litigation encountered would probably cause a

          6  hardship for the organization.  The DOB is a city

          7  agency whose clout and influence will not doubt

          8  reduce the possibility of the covenant being

          9  violated.

         10                 I believe that Council Member Melinda

         11  Katz also introduced a deed restrictions bill at

         12  some point.  From my understanding, her bill lacked

         13  the enforcement clauses that Councilman Avella's

         14  bill contains.  I believe there were attempts to ask

         15  Council Member Katz to withdraw her bill in favor of

         16  Councilman Avella's bill.  I do not know if that in

         17  fact has come to pass.  Councilman Avella's bill is

         18  more desirable.

         19                 I urge the Housing and Building

         20  Committee to support Intro. 15 and expedite its

         21  passage by the entire City Council.  This bill is

         22  another tool that we can use to lessen the problems

         23  of over development in our community and our city.

         24                 I  apologize for not appearing before

         25  this Committee in person.  I suffered a fractured
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          2  ankle and have limited mobility at this time.  Thank

          3  you for the opportunity for voicing my opinion on

          4  this important issue.

          5

          6  Testimony of:

          7  Paul Graziano

          8  Planning Consultant

          9  Zoning and Land Use Chair

         10  Queens Civic Association

         11                 Intro. 15, proposed by Council Member

         12  Avella, is a much needed provision that can protect

         13  individual buildings and entire neighborhoods from

         14  being indiscriminately altered and\or demolished

         15  based upon zoning rather than the private protective

         16  covenants already in place.

         17                 Numerous neighborhoods, particularly

         18  in planned communities in Queens County, have

         19  privately enforceable deed restrictions and

         20  covenants.  These restrictions were conceived

         21  doffing prior to the introduction of Municipal

         22  zoning regulations as a way for neighborhood to

         23  protect themselves from unwanted or intrusive

         24  development.  In many cases, these covenants have

         25  never expired and are enforceable through private
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          2  action.  Places like Broadway- Flushing, Douglas

          3  Manor, Bayside Gables, Forest Hills Gardens, Kew

          4  Forest and Richmond Hill all have restrictions and

          5  covenants that go well beyond current zoning and, in

          6  certain cases, the New York City Landmarks Law.

          7                 Currently, the major drawback to deed

          8  restrictions is the fact that they must be privately

          9  enforced, thus costing the neighborhood and

         10  homeowner associations with a vested interest

         11  considerable monetary expenditures.  An average case

         12  can cost a homeowner association upwards of $50,000,

         13  a long, drawn out cesarean section can cost well

         14  over $100,000.  In effect, the burden is placed on

         15  the homeowners, as the court rarely reimburses the

         16  out- of- pocket costs for court and attorney fees.

         17  Ultimately, if a neighborhood does not band

         18  together, it becomes financially onerous, if not

         19  impossible, to fight development that may meet city

         20  ordinance but not private restrictions.

         21                 Intro. 15 will allow those

         22  associations that have active deed restrictions to

         23  file them with the Department of Buildings, which

         24  will then be obliged to enforce the covenants in

         25  addition to existing Municipal ordinances.  This
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          2  will save the neighborhood and homeowner

          3  associations hundreds of thousands of legal fees

          4  while receiving the desired outcome, protection of

          5  their neighborhoods based upon the intention of the

          6  plan or scheme devised by the original developers of

          7  their tract.

          8                 Intro. 15 should be adopted so that

          9  the fabricated of our historic, planned

         10  neighborhoods at least has a fighting chance to

         11  survive into the 21st century.

         12                 Please consider this as part of the

         13  official testimony for the hearing record.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 3:50 p.m.)
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